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In 1998 the company was transformed by the merger of Exco with Intercapital,
a leading European derivatives broker, and was renamed Intercapital pic. The
two companies have a number of complementary strengths. Their combined
management and resources are capable of delivering good resuits in difficult
markets and will ensure that the potential of the merger is realised. Looking
ahead, the Group’s strategy is to focus on high-value products and enhance its
strong market position in these.

Intercapital plc Intercapital plc

Proformaresults®  Proforma results®

for 12 months for 12 months

(1/4/98-31/3/99) (1/4/97-31/3/98)
£m £m

Turnover (sales) 209.8 204.0
Operating profit 18.4 17.7
Profit before tax 20.9 20.3

*The proforma accounts set out above have been assembled from the following sources of information:

{i) results for the Exco businesses are available in the form of audited financial accounts for two accounting periods, 1st January 1997 to 31st
December 1897 and 1st January 1998 to 31st March 1999. Results for these two accounting periods have been apportioned to create proforma
results for two accounting periods ended 31st March 1998 and 1999. Results for businesses now discontinued have been removed from the
financial accounts for the accounting periods in question in order to isolate the results of the surviving businesses only;

{ii) results for Intercapital businesses for the accounting period ended 31st March 1998 have been taken from the Accountant’s Report on the
Intercapital companies which was contained in the Listing Particulars dated 30th September 1988; and

{iii) results for the Intercapital businesses for the accounting period ended 31st March 1899 have been taken from the audited financial accounts
for that accounting period.

The financial results from these three sources of information have been added together to create the proforma accounts set out in the above
table. All exceptional items have been removed and the amortisation of goodwill is excluded. The above financial information does not
constitute the statutory accounts of the Company nor has it been audited.

1 Intercapital plc Report and Accounts 1999
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Chairman/Chief Executive’s Report
Michael Spencer

Through the merger of Intercapital’s and
Exco’s broking companies, Intercapital plc
is now one of the world’s leading over-the-
counter derivatives brokers. Cur product
strengths, global coverage and technology,
place us in an ideal position to support our
clients’ present and future needs ina
changing market.

Consolidation: a necessary correction
Overcapacity in the moneybroking industry
means that we can expect further
consolidation as our competitors seek to
ensure long-term viability. Due to continuing
mergers in the banking sector, money and
securities brokers are now competing for
business from a diminishing number of
clients. The advent of the Eurc and continued
advances in technology have added to these
competitive pressures.

Intercapital and Exco were the first money
and securities brokers to take action, and
others will follow our lead. We are confident
that this proactive initiative will create long-
term value for our shareholders.

Strategy going forward

Intercapital is a leading wholesale derivatives
broking firm in Europe, and this is a strong
competitive platform on which to build. Our
focus going forward is to gain market share
by concentrating on our strong portfolio of
high-margin products, where adding value
and excellent service are key. We wilf not try
to be all things to all people, but instead focus
on the areas which deliver the greatest benefit
to our clients. Over time, we intend to expand
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our product range in other regions to the
same standards set in Europe, North America
and Asia.

Good fit

The complementary nature of Intercapital’s
and Exco’s businesses has ensured a smooth
merger with relatively modest job losses.

We have now centralised our operations in
London, Sydney and New York. Some
non-core businesses were sold; as aresult

of these and other measures, staff numbers
have declined by approximately 300 people
to 1,100 employees.

Many of the benefits of the merger are already
being realised. These include:

» strong market position; the Company’s
strengths in a broad range of
complementary products across our global
network of offices have made Intercapital
one of the market leaders;

* comprehensive service across the yield
curve: by combining Exco’s strengths in
the short-term yield curve with Intercapital’s
strengths in longer-term vield curve
products, the Company can now offer
clients a more comprehensive service;

» lower expense levels: through consclidating
our operations, overheads have been
reduced and the Company will keep
a firm grip on costs going forward.



Benefiting from technology

Technology is an increasingly important tool
for the broking industry. Electronic trading has
already had a major impact on the Spot
Foreign Exchange market and Intercapital is
well placed to move quickly as opportunities
arise. We see electronic trading as away
forward, enhancing traditional voice broking
in a variety of products that may not be ideally
suited to purely automated electronic
matching.

Our existing technology enables us to provide
rapid, accurate pricing across our product
range, and to develop proprietary computer
models and analytics. As one of the market
leaders, our information pages are deemed
the industry standard, particularly for interest
rate swaps, interest rate options and foreign
exchange options. We continue to explore
other cpportunities to utilise technology for
the benefit of our clients.

Reading this report

The merger has resulted in a number of
accounting complexities that make our
accounts difficult to interpret. The accounts in
the body of this report are for the 15-month
period from 1st January 1998 to 31st March
1999. This is because Exco and Intercapital
had different year-ends; the Intercapital year-
end has been selected. As the merger was
not effective for accounting purposes until
26th October 1998, the accounts contain
approximately ten months of Exco’s results as
an independent business and five months of
the merged Intercapital plc’s results. For this
and other technical accounting reasons, year-
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on-year comparisons may not be meaningful
and do not reflect the underlying financial
performance of the Group. For an indicative
view of our performance, a proforma showing
what the results might have been like if Exco
and Intercapital had merged on 1st April 1997
instead of 26th Cctober 1998, is shown on
page .

Outlook

Itis time to consolidate, streamline and
become more forward looking. Although there
was a slow start to the year, our merger
positions us well in terms of size, product
range and geographical coverage. We have
already completed our restructuring and face
the future with confidence and enthusiasm,

In closing, | would like to thank all our
employees, who have ensured that the
business has run so smeocthly during this time
of change.

Michael Spencer
Chairman/Chief Executive

Consolidation:

industry trend

We were the first significant
money and securities brokers
to consolidate; itis a
necessary market
adjustment and others have
followed our lead.

Strategy

Focus is the key to our
strategy: we will focus on
value-added products such
as derivatives, where we
have a high market share and
excellent customer relations.

Using technology
Increasingly, we expect
electronic commerce (EC) to
impact the market for lower-
value, high-turnover products.
EC is not currently well suited
to the complex products
where we specialise.
However, we will proactively
seek to develop EC solutions
for other products, either
alone or in partnership.

Good profit margins

By clearly focusing on
high-value products, we are
already achieving improved
profit margins.
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Intercapital at a Glance

Following the merger,
Intercapital’s and Exco’s
London operations have been
consolidated, creating a major
broking force in London.

Commodities

Credit Derivatives

Currency Opticns

Equity Derivatives

Equity Stock Broking
Forward Foreign Exchange -
Forward Rate Agreements
Futures - .
Government Bonds

Interest Rate Options

Interest Rate Swaps

Money Markets

Overnight Index Swaps -
Securities

US Government Bonds
WCLK Gilt IDB

Bonds ‘
Equity Derivatives
Money Markets

Capital Markets

CurrencyOptions =~
Forward Foreign Exchange
Forward Rate Agreements

Currency Options

Danish Krone Money Markets
Forward Foreign Exchange
International Money Markets
Spot Foreign Exchange

Following the merger,
Intercapital’s and Exco’s New
York aperations have been
consolidated. In December
1998, the Toronto operation
was sold.

Convertible Bonds
Electricity, Natural Gas, Coal .
Emerging Market FX . -
Forwards/Options

Emerging Marke_tSe‘c_:uri_ti'es"f e

Energy Options

FX Curfency Options". N

lMiguid bonds

Interest Rate Options
Interest Rate Swaps
Money Markets

Mortgage-Backed Securities

and Derivatives

Petrochemicals

US Government Agencies

US Treasury Bills

US Treasury Notes and Bonds
US Treasury Repo's

Weather

Following the merger,
Intercapital’s and Exco's
Sydney operaticns have been

" consolidated. The Group has
+ .. refocused its Asian Pacific

businesses on high-value
products with the disposal of
part of the Singapore
business to Nihon.

- ‘_ “Currency Obtions

Energy

.Fixed Income 7 :
‘Forward Féreign Exchange

[liquid Bonds
Credit Derivatives

Short and Medium Term IRS

Nittann AP Marshalls

" (Singapore) Private Ltd

Asian Capital Markets

Asian Currencies

G7/AUD Spot

International Money Markets

{CAP-Nitlan Pte Ltd

_“Exotic Options

" G10 and Regional Currencies
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Intercapital is a leading derivatives, money and securities broker,
- created by the merger of Intercapital and Exco plc in October 1998.
The Group is global with operations in Europe, America and Asia. |
) Post-merger product distribution . Pre-merger product distribution

) Geographical analysis of turnover {continuing business) Geographical analysis of headcount :
. 12 months to 31st March 1999 at 31st March 1999
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Operating Review
Europe
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London

Principally, the Euro has been good for our
business in London. Whereas smaller,
domestic competitors were often used for
local currency trading, we are seeing a shift to
the larger brokers for euro transactions.

In London, we continue to expand on our
leading position in derivatives, such as
Interest Rate Swaps, Interest Rate Options
and Currency Options. Highly respected
market surveys continue to rate us
exceptionally well in these products.

The successful integration of the Intercapital
and Exco businesses has created a major
broking force in London. Furthermore, our
investrment in technology puts London at the
forefront of broking excellence, and enhances
our ability to seize new opportunities as
technology continues o develop and
influence the way business is conducted.

From November 1998 to March 1999, we
focused on identifying and minimising
duplication within the merged offices,
rationalising front and back office systems
and switching to one accounting system.

All London operations are being consolidated
into one existing property in Finsbury Circus.
We now have a 350-position main dealing
room, using state-of-the-art technology.
Due to the complementary nature of the two
companies, there have been only modest
redundancies.
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Zurich

In Zurich, we are a market leader in CHF
Interest Rate Swaps across the entire yield
curve. 1998/99 was the best year in Zurich’s
history, despite a slowdown in activity during
the first three months of 1999,

Next year, we aim to maintain and improve
our market share in derivatives by continuing
to focus on excellence in customer service.
We will also extend our product range to
include short-term Interest Rate Swaps and
Euro SFR Futures.

Frankfurt

Our Frankfurt operations are now profitable
in several key producis, such as Money
Markets and Mortgage-backed Securities.
We have undertaken a major restructuring of
the office, which we anticipate will bear fruit
this year, although it has resulted in a high
one-off cost.

To become a leading house in this centre,
we are making a number of organisational
changes. After the merger, we embarked on
a new strategy for the bond market, working
in close cooperation with London.
Intercapital has a proven track record of
success even in difficult circumstances, and
we will use this expertise to rebuild our bond
activities. We will initially focus on developing
a strong foothold in the Government Bond
sector, then increase our market share of
Euro Bond trading.

11 Intercapital plc Report and Accounts 1999

Copenhagen

Lack of liquidity, consclidation in the banking
sector and the rise of electronic dealing
systerns have created difficult conditions for
Scandinavian brokers.

There is no initial indication of Norway,
Sweden or Denmark joining the Single

European Currency over the next three years.

We therefore see potential to develop and
enhance our services in the Scandinavian
markets, utilising our European network of
offices and client base. Market share and
profitability should improve following our
programme of tight control of costs.

Fast track

» | ondon operations being
consolidated and making
a profit.

s Zurich is a market leader
in Swiss (CHF) Interest
Rate Swaps.

 Steps taken to improve
performance in Frankfurt
and Copenhagen,









Operating Review
North America
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New York

Our New York office is a leading broker in
Fixed Income Securities, Money Markets,
Derivatives and Energy. Over the past 12
months we have increased our market share
in successful products, such as Mortgage-
backed products and their derivatives, US
Agency Bands, Repos, Cash Meney Markets
and Convertible Bonds.

However, trading conditions in other
products, such as US Treasury Securities,
Foreign Exchange Options and Emerging
Market Bonds, continue to be difficult.
Volumes for the Treasury market fell
significantly in the first quarter of 1989,
reflecting a lack of issuance by the US
government and a lack of volatility.

As expected, the introduction of the Euro has
led to a slowdown in Currency Options
activity, although this market now shows
signs of recovery. Similary, uncertainty in
emerging markets following market upsets in
Brazil and Russia has affected trading
volumes in these products. However, we have
seen increased volumes in both Emerging
Markets and Energy products in early 1999
and expect the trend of growth to continue.



1.1

S

Technology continues to play an important
role in our industry. We firmly believe in the
value of offering a hybrid service, where
customers have the option to transact
electronically or over the telephone. Electronic
trading need not replace traditional voice
broking; rather, they can be complementary
services.

To improve efficiency, we have embarked on
a number of cost management and reduction
initiatives. These have largely focused on
reducing overheads and improving the
management of our telecommunications
costs. We have made real progressin
reducing overheads over the past two years,
and now have a lean cost base.

In addition, we have scaled back a number of
desks this year. Notably, we combined the
ten-year, long bond and zero Treasury desks
and exited some products that showed no
sign of profitability in the near future.

Going forward, we believe that our strength
in Mortgage-backed products and their
derivatives, Energy, Cash Money Markets
and Convertible Bonds will increase turnover
over the next 12 months. These businesses
are well run and have good market shares.
We now have a manageable cost base, and
have established a solid foundation for
Energy and Emerging Market Bonds that will
benefit the company when trading returns to
more typical levels.

15 Intercapital plc Report and Accounts 1998

Disposal

In December 1998, the Group sold its
Canadian business, Exco Shorcan Limited,
for CAN$434,455 (£178,000) to local
management. There were a number of
reasons for the sale. This business was
peripheral to the core activities of the merged
group and required fresh investment. It was
therefore decided that it was in shareholders’
interests to sell at this point.

Fast track
¢ Fierce competition; lower
veolumes in some products.

« Sold Torento operation.
* Soon to offer both voice

and electronic broking to
North American customers.
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Operating Review
Asian Pacific
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Disposals

The Group completed a number of
fransactions in 1998 and the first quarter of
1998 to refocus its business in Asia on high-
value products in which it was one of the
market ieaders. Intercapital has built a strong
business relationship over a number of years
with its Japanese partner, Nihon, a leading
Tanshi house. Both companies believe these
transactions will further improve the high level
of service to customers within the region.

In December 1998 the Group sold its
traditional moneybroking operaticns in
Singapore to Nihon. The new company trades
as Nittan AP Marshalls, in which Intercapital
has acquired a 20% shareholding. This
company is now operating profitably. We also
sold a 50% stake in the Currency Options
business to Nihon and the company now
trades in the name ICAP-Nittan in Singapore
and Tokyo.

Sydney

In Australia, we hold a leading market
position in a number of high-vaiue products,
including Fixed Income Securities, Currency
Options and Interest Rate Swaps. We have
excellent teams working together on
Australian Government and Semi-
Government Bonds, which contribute to the
success of these businesses.



Consolidation between the Exco and
Intercapital teams on Interest Rate Swaps has
enhanced our market position, Qur
operations continue, however, to be
extremely successful in both Australfan and
New Zealand dollar swaps.

Cur paosition in forward foreign exchange has
improved, and we are now in the top two. This
is mainty forward Australian dollars and some
New Zealand dollars; the other currencies are
not widely traded. Electronic broking is not, at
this stage, a competitive factor.

Other products we broke include energy.
The electricity market in Australia was only
recently deregulated and the gas market is
expected to be deregulated soon, so we see
this as a growth opportunity.

Asia
Intercapital’s Asian business interests include;

¢ Intercapital Commodity Swaps (Singapore),
a market leader in Commodity Derivatives;

¢ ICAP-Nittan, which operates under this
brand name in Singapore and is a leader in
Currency Options with a newly formed
office in Tokyo;

» two joint arrangements with Nihon Tanshi
Group (Singapore, Tokyo} in equity
derivatives and interest rate options.

19 Intercapital plc Report and Accounts 1999

During 1998 and the first quarter of 1999,

the commodities and currency options
businesses performed well, and it is expected
that their position of market leadership will
continue. We are well placed in our core
products to grow these businesses when
Asian markets begin their recovery.

Fast track

* Amarket leader in Australia
for fixed income securities,
currency options and
interest rate swaps.

*+ Refocusing of Asian Pacific
businesses on value-added
products.

* Amarket leader in
commodity derivatives and
currency options in
Singapore.
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Michael Spencer-Chairman/Chief Executive
Michael Spencer, aged 44, is the founder of
the Intercapital private group and is currently
Chairman and Chief Executive of Intercapital
plc. Between 1983 and 1986 he was a director
at money broker Charles Fulton.

John Nixon~Non-Executive

Deputy Chairman

John Nixon, aged 44, is Managing Partner of
Veritas Capital Management Company. He
worked for Tullett & Tokyo Forex International
far 20 years and was Chief Executive Officer
from 1995 to 1997.

David Gelber-Chief Operating Officer

David Gelber, aged 51, is Chief Operating
Officer of Intercapital plc and has been
Managing Director of the Intercapital private
group since 1994. Prior to joining Intercapital
he held the position of Chief Operating Officer
for HSBC Giobal Markets.

Peter Buckley - Non-Executive Director
Pester Buckley, aged 56, was appointed a
non-executive director in June 1992. He is
Chairman of Caledonia Investments plc. Heis
also Chairman of Sterling Industries plc and
English and Scottish Investors ple; and a non-
executive director of Close Brothers Group
ple, Sun International Hotels Limited and
Offshore Logistics, Inc.
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Clive Gooke —Director

Clive Cooke, aged 41, was one of the
founders of Exco WCLK, the leading gilt inter-
dealer broker in the London market. In 1993
he became Chief Executive of Intercapital
Govermnment Securities Inc. in New York and
from 1996 he has also been Chief Executive of
Intercapital America Inc.

Jonathan Robson-Non-Executive Director
Jonathan Robson, aged 40, was Senior Vice
President of the International Management
Group of Telerate Financial Information
Network, Dow Jones Markets from 1987

to 1997.

Kim Taylor-Finance Director

Kim Taylor, aged 43, qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1981, Having worked for KPMG
for eight years, he joined the Group in 1986
and became Finance Director in 1992.

Hiroshi Watanabe - Non-Executive Director
Hirgshi Watanabe, aged 68, has been
President of Nihon Tanshi Company Limited,
the majority shareholder of Nittan Exco
Limited, Intercapital plc's Japanese Partner,
since 1992,



Financial Review
Kim Taylor
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Accounting Standards

In the preparation of these accounts the
Company has adopted the provisions of
Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 9:
Associates and Joint Ventures, 10: Goodwill
and Intangible Assets, 11: Impairment of
Fixed Assets and Goodwill, 12: Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
13: Derivatives and Other Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, and 14: Earnings,
Per Share.

Where these new Accounting Standards
have a significant impact upon the results
presented in these accounts, this is explained
in greater detail later on in this review and in
the notes to the accounts themselves. The
other impact of these standards is to require
further disclosures in the notes to the
accounts.

Taxation

The Group’s effective tax rate fluctuates from
year to year and will always be higher than the
standard UK corporation tax rate 0f 31%. The
cause of this is partly that the Group operates
in many countries where basic corporate tax
rates are higher than in the UK. in addition, the
nature of the Group’s business involves itin a
significant amount of expenditure such as
entertainment, which in many countries is not
wholly allowable for tax purpcses.



Exceptional ltems
An analysis of exceptional operating

expenses is given in note 4 to these accounts.

As can be seen from the note, the bulk of
these expenises has been incurred in merging
the existing businesses of the group and the
Intercapital companies acquired in October
1998. The merger of the businesses required
considerable expenditure not only on
professional fees, but also on rationalisation
of staff and space, in particular in London,
Sydney and New York.

In London FRS12 has required the Company
to make provision as a result of the decision
to concentrate the Group’s Londen
operations in one building in Finsbury Circus.
This new accounting standard requires the
Group to estimate the extent to which rental
expense wil exceed rental income in the
buildings which are vacated over the
remaining lease terms and to provide for this
sum in these accounts, Although this
provision has been discounted to its net
present value, in accordance with the
accounting standard, the result is a very
substantial provision. The provision however
does not mirror the cashflows. These will
oceur evenly over the remaining lease terms
of the properties. The larger of these leases
does not expire until 2009,

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of the
Intercapital companies has been capitalised
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in these accounts and is being amortised in
the profit and loss account over its useful
economic life. The Board has selected a life of
ten years for this goodwill, having taken
account of the nature of the business
acquired, the stability and competitiveness of
the industry and the typical life spans of the
products to which the goodwill attaches. The
Board felt in making its decision that a
prudent approach ought to be adopted to
establish the useful economic life of the
acquired businesses.

In addition, the loss on sale of operations
includes the sum of £17.9m in goodwill which
the Group had previously written off to
reserves. Before adoption of FRS10 the
Group’s accounting policy was to write off
goodwill to reserves immediately on
acquisition. As is permitted by FRS10, this
goodwill has not been reinstated in the balance
sheet, but it is required to be recognised in the
disposal of any business. The corresponding
credit entry is to be found in the movement in
reserves for the same sum.

Associated Undertakings

As a result of the reorganisation of the Group’s
holding in Nittan Exco Limited at the time of
the merger on 26th October 1998, Nittan Exco
Limited ceased to be treated as an associated
undertaking of the Group. it was felt by the
Board that it no longer had a significant
influence over the affairs of Nittan Exco
Limited, because the reduction in the Group’s



Financial Review
Kim Taylor

shareholding in Nittan Exco Limited to 24%
was combined with the termination of the
Shareholders' Agresment which governed the
business of that company.

Atthe end of 1998, when the moneybroking
businesses of the Group in Singapore were
sold to our Japanese partner, the Board came
to the view that the other significant
shareholdings of the Group in Indonesia,
Malaysia and Thailand ceased to be
associated undertakings, because the
influence of the Group over the businesses of
these companies had been reduced
significantly by this transaction.

The Board does not consider that the Group
has significant influence over the business of
Nittan AP Marshalls (Singapore) Private
Limited, in which the Group holds an interest
of just over 20%, and accordingiy this
investment is not regarded as an associated
undertaking.

Cash Flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities
amounted to £12.3m (1997: £3.1m). During
the accounting period capital expenditure
was incurred in complsting the move to
new offices in New York in the early part of
1998, building a new broking floor in
London in the middle of that year and
starting the consolidation of the London
operations in Finsbury Circus in the early
part of 1999,
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The acquisition of the Intercapital companies
brought with it £6.9m in cash. Further cash
inflows of £8.4m resulted from the sales of
subsidiary and associated undertakings.

As part of the merger with Intercapital £3.0m of
new equity share capital was raised from our
Japanese partner, Nihon Tanshi Co Limited,
together with a further loan by its subsidiary
Nittan Exco Limited of £3.0m. The overall
effect of these inflows was that it was then
possible to reduce long-term and short-term
loans by £14.8m in aggregate so that bank
borrowings at the balance sheet date stood at
only £3.4m compared to £18.3m as at 31st
December 1997. The loan from the
associated undertaking, Nittan Exco Limited,
was reduced by 31st March 1999 to £2.7m,
the consideration for the sale of 16% of the
group’s shareholding in Nittan Exco Limited
being satisfied by a partial reduction of the
loan from that company.

Balance Sheet

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of the
Intercapital companies has been capitalised
in Intangible Fixed Assets. Tangible Fixed
Assets reflect the completion of the re-
equipment of the New York office early in
1998 and the Londen offices in 1998 and
1999. As set out in note 16, the Company
ceased in this accounting period to have any
associated undertakings. Certain former
associated undertakings were re-classified as
fixed asset investments and an additional



investment was made in Nittan AP Marshalls
(Singapore) Private Limited.

Debtors have increased somewhat as a result
of the enlarged business which arose from the
merger; creditors reflect this, the reduction in
loans from Nittan Exco Limited as a result of
the transactions with it, and the reduction in
bank loans and overdrafts, which also affects
creditors due after more than one year.
Capital and reserves reflect the results
recorded in the profit and loss account
together with the effect of the acquisition of
the Intercapital companies and the
transactions associated with it in October
1998.

Risk
The Group holds or issues financial
instruments for two main purposes:

{i) to finance its operations; and

{ii) to manage the interest rate and currency
risks arising from those operations and
sources of finance.

In addition various financial instruments, for
example, debtors, creditors, accruals and
pre-payments, arise directly from the Group's
operations.

The Group finances its operations by a
mixture of retained profits and bank
borrowings. The Group borrows in a range of
currencies at floating rates of interest and may
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use derivatives where appropriate to generate
the desired currency profiles and interest
rates. The derivatives used for these
purposes are principally Forward Foreign
Exchange contracts, Foreign Exchange
Options and Interest Rate Swaps.

The Treasury Committee, which is described
on page 32, carries out these acfivities on
behalf of the Group, under the terms of
reference and powers delegated to itby

the Board.

The main risks arising from the Group’s
financial instruments are interest rate risk,
liquiidity risk, forgign currency risk and market
price risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks
regularly, as does the Treasury Committee,
and these policies are summarised below.
These policies and procedures have been in
place for many years.

Interest rate risk

The regulated nature of the industry in which
the Group operates dictates that the Group
holds in its balance sheet a substantial sum in
cash and other near-cash investments, such
as certificates of deposit and Treasury bills,
which exceed in amount its liabilities for
amounts borrowed. Since interest income on
these deposits and short-term investments is
therefore largely at floating rate, the Group’s
policy is also to leave its borrowings at
floating rate. Given that the margin between



Financial Review
Kim Taylor

interest income at floating rates and interest
expense at floating rates is a constant, the
Group has no net exposure to fluctuations in
interest rate expense. For this reason the
Group has historically made little use of
interest rate swaps.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s borrowings are essentially short
term. At the time of the merger in October
1998, facilities were put in place which will be
steadily repaid up to the time of their expiry on
30th April 2000. In addition to the term loan of
£3.44 million, at 31st March 1999 the Group
had undrawn but committed borrowing
facilities of £12.0 million, which expire or
reduce as follows:

Date of repayment/ Term Committed
or reduction in facility loan borrowing
facilities
£m £m
May 1999 0.560 2.0
August 1999 0.880 3.0
October 1999 0.560 2.0
January 2000 0.560 2.0
April 2000 0.880 3.0
3.44 12.0

Currency risk

Although the Group has its headquarters in
the UK, it has significant operations in
Australia, Denmark, Germany, Japan,
Singapore, Switzerland and the USA. As a
result the Group’s balance sheet in steriing
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terms can be significantly affected by the
movements in the respective currencies of
these countries against sterling. The Group's
policy in the past has been to reduce these
currency exposures by borrowing in Dollars,
Yen and Deutschmarks. As the Group's need
for borrowings has declined, however, these
currency hedges have been removed and at
the balance sheet date all of the Group's bank
borrowings were in Sterling.

Should the Group require in the future the use
of significant borowings, it would be the
policy of the Treasury Committee once again
to borrow in the currencies of its major
overseas investments.

The Group also has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from sales
or purchases by an operating unitin a
currency other than its own functional
currency. The Group’s policy is in the first
instance to match inflows and outflows in the
same currency across the Group’s worldwide
operations, then to consider any resulting
currency mismatches, 41% of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the operating
unit making the sale, whilst approximately
21% of the costs are denominated in the
operating unit's functional currency.

Through the Treasury Committee, the Group’s
policy is to take a view on whether exchange
rate movements are likely to be favourable or



unfavourable to the operating unit concerned.
If it is the Committee’s view that it is likely that
the rates are going to move unfavourably, it
will take cover over an appropriate period.
This it will do by the use for example of
Forward Foreign Exchange contracts or
Foreign Exchange Options.

Since the Group's balance sheet exposure to
sales or purchases of the operating units is
largely short term, it does not commonly
hedge the currency exposure on these
balances. The Group's policy is also to allow
locally earned profits to accumulate in local
currency and, in the same way as brokerage
income, to take out hedges against its
exposure to those currencies if it is the view of
the Treasury Committee that these currencies
are likely to move unfavourably against
Sterling.

Market price risk

As set out above, the Group has significant
exposures to non-Sterling currencies. These
exposures can affect not only the net assets
of the Group significantly, but also its tumnover,
operating costs and profits. Whilst the Group
does seek to hedge against transactional
currency exposures, it does not hedge
against translational exposures. For the
reasons described above, rising interest rates
would actually increase the Group’s
profitability, and falling interest rates reduce it.
Similarly a weakening of Sterling against the
other currencies of the Group’s operations
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would increase the Group's apparent
profitability, and a strengthening of Stetling
reduce it.

However, it must also be recognised that
changes in relative interest and exchange
rates in the world’s financial markets are key
determinants of the volumes in those
markets. Therefore, as interest and exchange
rates move relative to one another, the
volumes transacted by the Group as a broker
will change. Historical experience does not
establish that there is a correlation between
exchange and interest rate changes and
volumes. Thus it would be misleading to
attempt tc extrapolate from an exchange rate
effect the overall impact on the Group, since
it is not possible to estimate what the effect
on market valumes would be under these
exchange rate conditions.

Lo ity

Finance Director



Directors’ Report

15 months ended 31st March 1999

1. The directors present their annual report together with the Group accounts for the 15-month period ended 31st March 1999,

2. Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Group is wholesale money and securities broking, The profit and foss account for the period is set out on page 41.

3. Review of Business
Areview of the business of the Group and its development during the financial period is set out on pages 210 27.

4. Dividends and Transfers to Reserves
A dividend of 1p net per ordinary share, amounting to £3,675,937, payable on 27th August 1999 to shareholders on the register on
30th July 1999, will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

5. Change of Accounting Reference Date

The Company has changed its accounting reference date from 31st December to 31st March, to align itself with the accounting reference
date of Intercapital Group Limited, the ultimate parent company. The relevant notice has been filed with the Registrar of Companies in
accordance with section 225 of the Companies Act 1985.

6. Change of Accounting Reference Period
The accounting reference period has been extended to 3tst March 1999. The 1999 accounts have been prepared inrelation to the
15-month period to 31st March 1999, and references to 1997 prior year figures refer to the 12 months to 31st December 1997.

7. Directors
The directors as at the date of this report are set out on pages 20-21.

Peter Edge, John Heywood, Michael Johns and James Magee resigned as directors on 26th Qctober 1998. David Hubbard resigned
as Chairman on 26th October 1998. Michael Spencer was appointed Chairman and Chief Executive on 26th October 1998. David
Gelber was appointed a director on 26th Qctober 1998, John Nixon, Jonathan Robson and Hiroshi Watanabe were appointed directors
on 1st Decernber 1998, Marcel Wolf resigned as Chief Operating Officer on 26th October 1998 and David Gelber was appointed Chief
Operating Offlcer on 1st December 1998. David Hubbard resigned as a director on 31st December 1998, Marcel Wolf resigned as a
director on 8th June 1999.

8. Directors’ Interests
The interests of the directers holding office at 31st March 1999 and their families in the shares of the Campany, as required to be notified
under the Compantes Act 1985, are set out in the Board Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 35 to 40,

There were no contracts of significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial year in which a director of the Company was
materially interested (other than service contracts).
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9. Substantial Shareholdings
At Tst June 1999 the directors were aware of the following interests, each of which represent 3% or mare of the issued share capital of
the Company:

Number of Percentage of
ordinary shares issued share capital
Mr and Mrs Michasl Spencer* (see note {j) on page 38) 231,801,727 63.07
Intercapitat Group Limited* 231,801,727 63.07
Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited 231,801,727 63.07
The Caledonia No. 1 Settlement Trust 33,693,175 _ 9.17
Nittan Capital Holdings Limited
{a subsidiary of Nihon Tanshi Co. Limited) 12,000,000 3.26
Nittan Exco Limited
(a subsidiary of Nihon Tanshi Co. Limited) 6,323,318 o 1.72
Niton Tanshi Co. Limited 18,323,318 4.99

*deemed interest

Nihon Tanshi Co. Limited is the parent company of Nittan Capital Holdings Limited and Nittan Exco Limited and accordingly interested in
the shares owned by its subsidiaries.

10. Contracts of Significance with Controlling Shareholders

No contracts of significance to which the Group or its subsidiary undertakings were a party and in which a controfling shareholder had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the vear, except as disclosed in note 31
1o the accounts.

11. Subsidiary and Associated Undertakings
Details of changes in fixed asset investments in subsidiary and associated undertakings are shown in note 16(a) to the accounts.

12. Donations
In the United Kingdom, the Group contributed £854,463 {1997: £750) to charitable organisations. In addition, subsidiary undertakings
outside the UK contributed £535,598 to charitable organisations (1997: £69,105).

13. Corporate Governance

InJanuary 1998 the Committee on Corporate Governance issued its final report, which was adopted by the Stock Exchange in the form of
the Combined Code in June 1998. The extent to which the Company has achieved compliance with the Combined Code is therefore partly
conditioned by lts date of issue: certain of its requirements did not exist throughout the whole of the accounting period. The position of the
Company in relation to the Code is further complicated by the fact that the merger with Intercapital was not effective until 26th Octooer
1998, The information contained in this section of the annual report is therefare necessarily detailed and should be read in the light of the
above factors.

The Company has considered the Principles of Good Governance and the Code of Best Practice set out in the Combined Code.

(1) The Board
The Company is headed by an effective board of directors which has wide experience both within the industry and in other fielc's. It
meets regularly and has adopted a schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision. The Board has appainted a number of
committees which meet regularly, have defined terms of reference and a formal constitution. The Board has delegated authority to
these committees to deal with certain aspects of the management of the Group. These committees are described in more detait below.

There is an agreed procedure by which members of the Board may take independent professional advice and all directors have H3CeSS
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary.
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(2} The Chairman and Chief Executive
Since 26th October 1998 the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive have been combined and carried out by Michael Spencer. Beiore the
imerger with Intercapital, these roles were separated. The Board made a conscious decision to combine the roles of Chairman and Chiaf
Executive because it was its experience that, in an industry where people, their morale and their relationships are so important to the
success of the business, it is vital that there is a hierarchy clear to all, The Board felt that this was particularly true of the initial period after
the merger of the Exco and Intercapital businesses, when there was a considerable amount of restructuring work to be carried out. Thus,
in the interests of the Company and therefore the sharsholders, it was decided to concentrate executive power into the hands of one
person with a single focal point of operational decision making and autharity. The Board does not feel that this gives Michael Spencer
unfettered powers of decision. The independence and experience of the other members of the Board ensure that there is still a batance of
power and authority within the Board. The situation will however be kept under review, and as, or if, circumstances change and the Board
thinks that it is the appropriate time to separate the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive, then such proposals will be brought forward,

Since 1st December 1998, when John Nixon was identified in this rolg, the Company has hiad a senior independent director.

(3) Board Balance
The Board currently consists of four executive and four non-executive directors. The non-executive directors have been selected on the
basis of their calibre, their experience and the contribution they can make to the development of the business. Alt are considered bythe
Board to be independent.

@) Supply of Information
The Board is supplied in a timely manner with information ina form and of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties.

{5} Appointments to the Board
Itis the function of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee, a fuller description of which is given below, to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Committee consists exclusively of non-executive
directors.

(6) Re-election
Since the merger with Intercapital (when the articles of association were amended; all directors are required to submit themselves for re-
election at least every three years. Prior to the merger the articles gave the right to Caledonia Investments plc to appoint a non-executive
director. Af the time of the merger the articles were changed in this respect also and now all non-executive directors are appointed for
specified terms and their re-appointment is not automatic.

(7} Directors’ Remuneration
The report of the Board on Directars’ Remuneration, which is set out on pages 35 to 40, gives full details of the manner in which the
Company applies the principles and provisions of the Combined Code to this area.

(8) Relations with Shareholders
The Company meets regularly with its institutional shareholders to discuss the objectives of the business and the progress of the
business towards those objectives. It also believes that the Annual General Meeting provides a useful forum to communicate with its
private shareholders and encourages their participation.

(9) Accountability and Audit
The Board seeks to present a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s position and prospects through its pubfic
announcements and the annual report. It also maintains a sound system of internal financial control as is described on page 32 below,
In making this statement the Board has foltowed the further guidance on internal contro! given by the Stock Exchange in Decembear 1998.
Inthe absence of detailed guidance on how to apply the Code to the wider aspects of internal controf, the Stock Exchange has permitted
confirmation of compliance with the Code to be restricted to internal financial control only. The Company has long had an Audit .
Committee, comprised of two non-executive directors and the alternate to a non-executive director. The Board does not consider tkiat
being an alternate to a non-executive director makes that member of the Audit Committee any less independent. The Audit Comnittee
oversees relationships with the Group’s auditors, financial reporting and the maintenance of appropriate internal financial contrcis, “he
activities of the Audit Committee are more fully described on page 31 below.

Compliance with the Combined Code
The Company has identified that it does not or has not complied with the Combined Code during the accounting period in the
following respects:

* Since 26th October 1998 the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive have been combined. The reasons for this are set out above.
* The Company has had a senior independent director only since 1st December 1988, when John Nixon was identified in that rote.

» Between 26th October 1998, when certain of the former non-axecutive directors resigned on completion of the merger with Intercayital,
and 1st December 1998, when three new non-executive directors were appointed, non-executive directors comprised less than one third
of the Board.,
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* The Audit Committee consists of two non-executive directors and the alternate to a non-executive director, The reasons for this are set
out above.

* Until the articles of association were amended on 26th October 1998, executive directors were not required to submit themselve:; !or re-
election at any time. Before 26th October 1998, the articles of association gave Caledonia Investments Plc the right to apponnt anun-
executive director who was not subject to rotation.

* As set out in more detail in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on page 37 below, new contracts were entered into with the executive
directors when the merger with Intercapital became effective. These contracts incorporate initial contractual periods of greater thari one
year, though the notice periods in them are eventually one year or less. The reasons for this depariure from the Code are set out i the
Report on Directors’ Remuneration. Some of the direciors’ service contracts in existence prior to the merger also did not comply with the
Code in respect of their length and notice periods. All these contracts have been replaced or terminated as part of the merger,

* The Gompany willin future count ali proxy votes and, except where a poll is called, indicate the leve! of proxies lodged on each resalution,
and the balance for and against each resolution, after it has been deait with on a show of hands. Thisis a change from previous practice.

* In previous years it was not the practice of the Company to give at least 20 working days’, notice to shareholders of the Annual General
Meeting. This provision of the Code has been followed in respect of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Board has formed the following Committees:
Executive Committee

Michael Spencer (Chairman)

Clive Gooke

David Gelber

Declan Kelly (a director of Intercapital Group Limited)
Kim Taylor

The Executive Committes formulates the strategy of the Group for presentation to the full Board and implements all decisions made by the
Board. In addition, the Committee monitors and guides the Group's financial performance and approves capital and revenue invesinient
proposals within limits agreed by the Board. The Executive Committee meets regularly to deal with all matters not specifically reservadto
the Board or any other commitiee.

Remuneration and Nominations Committee
John Nixon (Chairman)

Peter Buckley

Jonathan Robson

The Remuneration and Nominations Committee consists exclusively of non-executive directors and meets at least twice a year. The Chief
Executive attends except when his own affairs are under discussion. The Committee establishes the remuneration packages of the
executive directors. It also is the body which is authorised by the Board to exercise any powers vested in it under the rules of the Exco plc
{Ne.1) and (No.2) Employee Benefit Trusts, the Exco plc (Nos. 1, 2 and 3) Share Option Schemes and the Long-Term Employee Shara Plan,
including the issue of share options.

The Committee’s duties are also to nominate suitable persons as directors for approval by the Board as and when required.

Audit Committee

Jonathan Cartwright (Chairman)
John Nixon

Jonathan Robson

The Audit Committee, which consists of non-exegUtive directors and Jonathan Cartwright, alternate director for Peter Buckley, masis at
least twice a year. The Group Finance Director and the external auditors attend the meetings of the Committee as required. The Cominitiee
is the primary point of contact for the agreement of the nature and scope of the audit and the discussion of its results with the external
auditors. It has a duty to ensure that the auditors are free to conduct their investigations independent of management constraint an< that
their independence and objectivity are maintained.

The Committee also assists the Board in ensuring that appropriate accounting policies, internal financial controls and compliance
procedures are in place. Furthermore, the Committee reviews all financial information to be published by the Group before its subrrassion to
the Board.
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Treasury Gommittee

Kim Taylor (Chairman)

Vanessa Cruwys (Group Financial Contraller)

David Gelber

Simon Mansell (Finance Director of Intercapital Group Limited)

The Treasury Committee meets regularty. Its primary duty is to ensure that the Group has adequate cash resources to meet its needs. It
issues limits to each subsidiary which are designed to minimise country and banking risks for the Group as a whole. The Committee’s
duties also encompass the minimisation of the exposure of the Group to foreign currency and interest rate risks. The Treasury Committee
does not, however, operate as a profit centre and doss not conduct its activities with the object of making a trading profit.

Compliance Committee
Kim Taylor (Chairrman)
David Gelber

Edward Pank

Given that many of the businesses of the Group are subject to local regulatary regimes, the Compliance Committee has adutyto actas a
review and advisory body giving general supervision and guidance on any compliance matter in the Group. The Committee reporte direct
to the Board on any relevant compliance matters.

Internat Financial Control

The directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the Group’s system of internal financial control, They recognise that such a system
can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material mis-statement or loss. Control is exercised throughan .
organisational structure with clearly designated levels of responsibility, delegation of authority and appropriate reporting procedures.
Information is regularly provided at all levels and compared with budgeted targets which are reviewed on a monthly basis.

The following are the main features of the internal financial control framework:

* Financial Reporting - there is a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual budget approved by the Board. Monthly trading results,
balance sheets and cashflow statements are reported against the corresponding figures for the budget and previous year. Each month
the forecast for the full year is reviewed in the light of trading resuits.

* Treasury Management — the Treasury Department operates within Board-approved guidelines. Transactions are authorised at the
requisite level and there is an appropriate segregation of duties. Frequent reports are made to the Group Finance Director and to the
Treasury Committee.

* Capitat Expenditure — there are clear and detailed procedures for the appraisal and authorisation of all capital expenditure, however
financed. There is also, where appropriate, a process of post-investment review,

* Risk Management — the identification of major business risks is cartied out in conjunction with operating management and steps ae
taken to mitigate or manage these where possible. The key risks are identified and reported to the Board and Audit Committee.

* Operating Company Systems - each operating company maintains financial controls and procedures appropriate to its own busmeas
environment conforming to overall standards and guidelines.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal financial control operated by the Group
for the period from 1st January 1998 to 31st March 1990.

Going Concemn

Having reviewed the Group's liquid resources, borrowing facilities and its cashflow forecasts, the directors believe that the Group has
adequate rescurces to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. For this reason, the accounts have been prepared or the
going concern basis.

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities for preparing accounts is set out on page 74.
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14. Special business to be conducted at the Annual General Meeting - Notice: pages 76 to 78.

Resolution 12 - Authority to allot ordinary shares for cash
Resolution 12 will be proposed, as in previous years, to renew the authority to allot unissued shares in the Company.

The balance of the Company's authorised ordinary share capital of 490,000,000 ordinary shares of 25p each which remains unissued is
now 122,406,289 ordinary shares (approximately 33.3% of the issued share capital at 8th June 1999). It is proposed that the directors be
authorised to allot shares up to this amount. The authority, if granted, will last until 21st October 2000. The directors have no presen’
intention of exercising this authority.

Resolution 13 - Directors’ power to disapply pre-emption rights

This resolution, which will be proposed as a special resolution, seeks to renew the directors’ flexibility to issue shares for cash othey than
strictly pro rata to existing shareholders and supplements the directors’ authority to allot shares in the Company (given to them by
resolution 12).

Under section 89 of the Companies Act 1985, if the directors wish to allot “equity securities”, which includes ordinary shares, for cash {other
than pursuant to an employee share scheme) they must in the first instance offer them to existing ordinary shareholders pro rata to their
ordinary shareholdings. There may be occasions, howgver, when the directors will need the flexibility to finance business opportunites by
the issue of ordinary shares without a pre-emptive offer to existing crdinary shareholders, Shareholders granted such an authority to the
directors at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 23rd October 1998. That authority will expire at the end of this Annual Generai
Meeting and resolution 13 seeks to renew . If resolution 13 is passed, the requirement imposed by section 89 will not apply to allctnients
by the directors in three cases:

(@) in connection with arights {or similar) issue, where strict application of the principle in section 89 would ffor example) either resuit in
fractional entitlements to shares arising or require the issue of shares where this would be impractical because of local legal or
regulatory requirements in any given overseas jurisdiction; and

{b) pursuant to the acceptance of any scrip dividend offer; and/or

{) allotments of shares for cash up to a total number of 18,379,685 ardinary shares of 25p each (representing 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital at 8th June 1998). This gives the directors flexibility to take advantage of business opportunities as they arise, whiisi
the 5% limit ensures that existing shareholders’ interests are protected, and is in line with guidelines issued by institutional
investors’ bedies.

The directors will comply with the guidelines of the Investment Protection Commiittees that no more than 7.5% of the issued share capitat
of the Company will be allotted for cash on a non-pre-emptive basis during any rolling three-year period.

This authority will lapse not tater than 21st October 2000 except insofar as commitments to allot shares have been entered into befcre
that date.

Resolution 14 - Power to repurchase shares

Under resolution 14 which will be proposed as a special resolution, shareholders’ approval will be sought to renew the Company’s power to
purchase its own ordinary shares given to it at the Extracrdinary General Meeting held on 23rd October 1998, If the resolution is passed, it
will empower the Company to purchase up to 36,759,371 ordinary shares (being approximately 10% of the Company’s issued shases as at
8th June 1999) at a price not more than 5% greater than the average of the middle market quotations for such ordinary shares during the
five business days preceding any such purchase. This power will be used only in circumstances where the directors, after careful
consideration, believe that such a purchase would result in an increase in expected earnings per share or net assets per share and would
be in the best interests of shareholders. Any shares purchased will be cancelled and the number of shares in issue will accordingly &x
reduced.

The authority sought will expire on 21st October 2000 or, if earlier, at the conclusion of the next Annual General Mesting of the Cornpeny.
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15. Year 2000 Compliance

The Group set up a project team in mid-1997 to assess the exposure of the Group to the Year 2000 issue and to put in place the necessary
remedial action. Regular reports have been made to the Board. The Group has also been working closely with regulators, who hayé taken
an active interest in the readiness of the industry to cope with the Year 2000 issue. The assessment has taken into account the review of
bothin-house systems and systems and services supplied by third parties. So far as in-house systems are concerned, the project team
rapidly identified the work required to achieve Year 2000 compliance and this work is expected to be completed by mid-1999, Whers
necessary, core systems have been amended or replaced, but the work required has not been extensive and the total cost of the aciivities
undertaken has been some £300,000.

As far as systems and services supplied by third parties are concerned, the Group, like many businesses, is reliant upon those third parties
achieving their own Year 2000 compliance. The Group has undertaken a thorough process of consultation with key third parties and has
received assurance of their Year 2000 compliance. These assurances do not, however, amount to guarantees. Just like all other
participants in the wholesale financial markets, the Group is heavily reliant on effective and resilient voice and data telecommunications
networks. Whilst there is'no reason to believe that the assurances given by telecommunication networks suppliers are not to be refied upon,
the remiote possibility does exist of a major disruption of these networks at the end of this calendar year. Because there are no alter-ative
methods of voice and data communications available, such disruption would affect the Group. The Group is otherwise in the process of
establishing business continuity plans, should any key in-house systems or third party systems and services fail.

16. Policy on Payment to Creditors

The Company’s policy for the 15-month pericd ended 31st March 1999, for all suppliers, is to fix terms of payrment when agreeing ihe terms
of each business transaction, to ensure that the supplier is aware of those terms, and to abide by the agreed terms of payment. At 21t
March 18929 the Company had no trade creditors.

17. Auditors

The Company’s auditors, Coopers & Lybrand, merged with Price Waterhouse on 1st.July 1998, following which Coopers & Lybrar
resigned and the directors appoirted the new firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, as auditars. A resolution to reappoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

E.C. Pank

Secretary

London

16th June 1999 - v
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Board Report on Directors’ Remuneration

1. Composition of the Remuneration and Nominations Committee
The members of the Committee are set out on page 31 of these accounts.

2. Compliance

The Company has adopted the provisions of the Combined Code. The constitution and operation of the Remuneration and Nominations
Committee complies with the principles and provisions set out in the Code. The Committee afso confirms that full consideration has been
given to the principles and provisions in determining the remuneration packages for directors for the year to 31st March 2000.

3. Policy on Remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Executives

{a) Total level of remuneration
The Remuneration and Nominations Committee aims to ensure that remuneration packages are competitive and attract, retain ard
motivate executive directors and senior executives of the right calibre.

(b} Components of directors’ remuneration
The main components of the directors’ remuneration are as follows:

) BasicSafary
The basic salary for each director is determined by the Remuneration Committee by taking inte account the performance of the
individual and the rates of pay for similar pesitions in comparable companies.

(i} Annual Bonus
Bonuses can be awarded to the executive directors of the Company provided that certain financial targets are met. These financiai
targets are combined with personal targets given to the directors by the Committee. Failure to achieve these targets would leadi tc a
reduction in bonus even if the financial targets are met. For the 15-month period to 31st March 1999 financial targets were inappronriate
and thersfore the Committee used its discretion in making bonus awards.

(iii} Share Options
The Company believes that share ownership by directors and senior executives strengthens the link hetween their personal interests
and those of the shareholders. There are no incentive or share option plans currently open to directors. Two directors possess share
options which were granted to them whilst the Company was in private ownership. These option schemes are explained further on
pages 39 and 40 of this Report.

{iv) Benefits
The Group provides directors with pension, healthcare and life assurance benefits. in no cases is a car provided.

(c) Companies used for comparison
In assessing all aspects of pay and benefits, the Committee compares packages offered by competitor companies. These companies are
chosen having regard to size, diversity, complexity and product spread.

(d} Policy on service contracts

Itis the experience of the Committee that in the money and securities broking industry it is difficult to attract and retain the services of
competent management, the competition far whose services is fierce. Furthermore, custom in the industry (much of which lies outside
the listed sector) is to lock in key members of staff by the use of contracts containing initial periods or notice periods of greaterthah one
year's duration. In the light of these factors the Remuneration and Nominations Committee considered whether it was appropriaie to
reduce the contract or notice periods in directors’ service contracts to one year or less at the time of the merger. The Remuneration and
Nominations Committee decided that it was not appropriate to take such a step nor in the shareholders’ interests. Accordingly it ot in
place the service contracts described in detail below. The Committee believes that it is necessary for it to retain the discretion to offer
new directors contracts whose Initial duration or notice periods are greater than one year, The Committee alsc believes it is necessay
for it to retain the discretion to offer directors similar contract periods or notice periods at renewal of their contracts, given the
characteristics of the industry set out above,

It may be possible to negotiate explicit compensation commitments in directors’ service contracts, but this is very much a matter which wil
vary from case to case. The Committee has in the past sought to enforce the duty of a departing director to mitigate his loss and will
continue to do so in the future. The Commiittee will always negotiate service contracts with the provisions of the Code in mind and will strive
to meet them, if at all possible. The Commiitiee recognises however that market practice makes it unlikely that these objectives will oiten

be met.
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Board Report on Directors’ Remuneration

(e) Pension policy regarding executive directors

The Company has no single pension scheme, nor cne which is specific to the executive directors. Instead directors participate in pension
schemes which are usual for the countries in which they live and work and which are similar to or the same as those extended to all
employees in that country,

The Company does not provide schemes which increase pension benefits to the levels that would have applied without the caps imposed
by the local law. Neither benefits nor bonuses are pensionable.

Directors have personal pension schemes which fall into the category of defined contribution schemes. The ultimate benefits are derived
from the contributions made to the pension schermne and are not related to the director’s final salary.

4. Directors’ Emoluments
The emoluments of the directors in office for all or part of the 15-month pericd to 31st March 1989 are set out below:

Payments Total Total
Comp- Gainson toDefined 15months 12months
pensation  exercise Coniribution to to
Salary Annual forloss of of share Pension  31stMar 31stDec
&fees  Benefits Bonus office opticns Schemes 1999 1897
Notes £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Executive Directors
Michael Spencer 157 1 80 - - 8 246 -
Clive Cooke 501 5 - - 28 62 596 447
Peter Edge (@ 216 1 - 233 - 49 489 335
David Gelber 98 - 45 - - 5 148 -
James Magee 108 - - - - - 108 163
Kim Taylor 188 1 75 - 4 45 313 164
Marcel Wolf ()] 333 - 94 542 71 100 1,140 344
Non-executive Directors
Peter Buckley 21 - - - - - 21 - 17
John Heywecod 15 - - - - - 15 17
David Hubbard © 60 1 - 19 - - 80 60
Michael Johns 14 - - - - - 14 17
John Nixon 8 - - - - - 8 -
Jonathan Robson 7 - - - - - 7 -
Hiroshi Watanabe 7 - - - - - 7 -
Directors who resigned in 1997 - - - - - - 114
Total 1992 (15 menths) 1,733 9 294 794 103 269 3,202 1,678
Total 1997 (12 months}) 1415 41 - - - 222 . 1,878
Notes

(a) Under an agreement dated 29th September 1998, drawn up as part of the merger process, Peter Edge will continue to receive bis basic
annual salary and benefits (but not bonus) until 10th July 1998. Provision has been made in the accounts for the liabilities under this
contract.

(b} Under an agreement dated 29th September 1998, drawn up as part of the merger process, Marcel Wolf will continue to receive his basic
annual salary and benefits (but not bonus) for 18 manths after the termination of his contract. His contract was terminated on 16th May
1989. The cutstanding liabilities under this agreement have been accrued in these accounts. The total figure represents 33 montis®
emoluments.

{c) In recognition of his services to the Company, the Board awarded David Hubbard an ex-gratia payment of £18,500 on 28th January 1999,

Clive Cooke discharges and Marcel Wolf until his resignation discharged their duties wholly or mainly outside the United Kingdom.
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The key terms of the executive directors’ service contracts which were put in place at the time of the merger are set out below.
“Admission” is defined as 26th October 1998,

Basic annual Annual pension
Director Term salary Bonus amangements contribution
Clive Cocke  Terminable onsecond anniversary ~ US$525,000 5% of the first US$7.5 million of the Not applicable
of Admission or thereafter on any profits before interest and tax of the US
anniversary of Admission on operating companies and 7.5% of profits
6 months’ notice before interest and tax in excess of
US$7.5 million
David Terminable on second anniversary £225,000 Entitled to participate in a bonus 5% of
Gelber of Admission or any time thereafter pool to be set up after Admission by basic salary
on 6 months’ notice the Commiittee
Michael Terminable on second anniversary £360,000 Entitled to participate in a bonus 5% of
Spencer of Admission or any time thereafter pool to be set up after Admission by basic salary
on 12 months’ notice the Committee
Kim Taylor Terminable on the day falling £150,000 Entitled to participate in a bonus £33,750
18 months after Admission poc! to be set up after Admission by
and on any anniversary thereof the Committee
on 6 months’ notice
Marcel Wolf  Terminable on two weeks' notice £279,000 £94,000 on 31st December 1998 £82,000 up to
onor at any time after 1st January 31st December 1938
1989, This contract was and thereafter £ 150,000
terminated on 16th May 1999 to the period ended

Former Directors
Joseph Sciametta had a contract of employment with Intercapital America Inc entered into on 1st January 1994, lasting from that
date unti! 31st December 1928 at an annual rate of $600,000. Provision was made in the accounts of the Group for the year etded

31st December 1995 for outstanding liabilities under this contract.

30th June 1999, ar
pro rata should e
leave earlier

Philip D*Angelo, who resigned as a director on 31st December 1991, continued to be paid at an annual rate of $500,000 under a

compensation agreement with Intercapital America Inc covering his loss of executive office on 31st December 1980. This agiaement
cavered the period from 1st January 1991 to 8th April 1998. Full provision was made in the accounts of the Group for the yea ended
31st December 1990 for the liabilities under this compensation agreement.
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5. Directors’ Shareholdings
The interests of directors and their families in the share capital of Intercapital plc are as follows:

Ordinary 25p shares
31st March 1% January
1999 1998
Beneficial Beneficial
Michael Spencer See note () -
Peter Buckley 100,000 100,000
Clive Cooke 266,030 139,857
David Gelber See note (i) -
John Nixon - -
Jonathan Robson - -
Kim Taylor ' 72,962 52,062
Hiroshi Watanabe - -
Marcel Wolf 1,729,225 480,225

) Mrand Mrs Spencer are the beneficial owners of 306,780 shares in aggregate in Intercapital Group Limited, which is approxirmately
42% of the issued share capital. On 26th October 1998 Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited acquired 231,801,727 shares in
Intercapital plc, which is 63.07% of the share capital of Intercapital pic. Intercapital Group Limited owns 88% of Intercapital Brokerage
Services Limited. Michael Spencer also directly owns 120,000 shares in Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited.

Mr and Mrs Michael Spencer own approximately 42% of Intercapital Group Limited and by virtue of that holding, Michae! Spencer is
indirectly interested for the purposes of section 324 of the Companies Act 1985 in all shares in the Company held by Intercapitai Group
Limited and its subsidiaries.

(i) David Gelber is the beneficial owner of 20,000 shares in Intercapital Group Limited, which is 2.72% of the issued share capital.
The interests set out above were unchanged at 1st June 1998, except where noted below.

The mid-market price of the ordinary shares of the Company at 31st March 1999 was 36.5p (31st December 1997: 31.5p).

The Executive Directors

For the purposes of section 324 of the Companies Act 1985, each of the executive directors is deemed to be interested in all the Inwercapital
plc shares held by Exco Trustees Limited as trustee of the No. 1 Employee Benefit Trust, as they are potential discretionary beneficiaries of
that Trust. At 31st March 1999 that Trust held 2,160,794 shares and at 1st June 19989 that Trust held 1,289,594 shares in Intercapitai pic.

For the purposes of section 324 of the Companiss Act 1985, each of the executive directors is deemed to be interested in all the shares of
Intercapital Group Limited held by the Barclays Private Bank & Trust Limited, as they are potential discretionary beneficiaries of that trust.
At 31st March 1999 that Trust held 117,111 shares and at 1st June 1999 that Trust held 114,604 shares in Intercapital Group Limited.

The Non-Executive Directors

For the purposes of section 324 of the Companies Act 1985, each of the non-gxecutive directors is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of Intercapital plc owned by Exco Trustees Limited as trustee of the No. 2 Employee Benefit Trust, as they are potential discreiionary
beneficiaries of that Trust. At 31st March 1999 that Trust held 40,000 shares and at 1st June 1998 that Trust held no shares.
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6. Directors' Options
Details of the share options granted to directors are as follows:

1992 No. 1 Share Option Scheme

Atist Number of options At31st

January during the year March

1998 Granted  Exercised 1999

Michael Spencer - - - -
Peter Bucklay - - - -
Clive Cooke 96,000 - (96,000) -
David Gelber - - - -
John Nixon - - - -
Jonathan Robson - - - -
Kim Taylor - - - -
Hiroshi Watanabe - - - -
Marcel Woif 214,000 - (214,000) -

The 1992 No. 1 Share Option Scheme, of which Exco Trustees Limited is trustee, was established by a Deed of Trust dated 29th April 1992.
The scheme was a part of the arrangements put in place at the time of the private placement of 60% of the share capital of the Company in
June 1882, It has not been submitted to the Inland Revenue for approval under Schedule 9 to the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988.
No further options can be granted under this scheme.

The options were over existing ordinary shares of the Company. They were offered as a package of three share options for every twa
shares purchased at a price of 62.5p each (adjusted for the share split which took place in 1994). This was the same price as that paid by
those financial institutions which purchased through the private placement. Therefore, notionally, each share acquired by an emplovae or
director could be thought of as having an original acquisition price of 25p per share. Furthermore, since these share options were not
conventional share oplions, the full value of the shares at the date of exercise of the options was in most tax jurisdictions assumed to be
subject to income tax, rather than capital gains tax. The options could be exercised at any time, but before the seventh anniversary of the
date of grant. The date of grant was 1st June 1992. Identical (though separate) arrangements were made for employees of associated
undertakings and non-executive directors through the Exco ple (No. 2) Employee Benefit Trust and (No. 2) Share Option Scheme.

The exercise price was £1.00 for each event of exercise.

No directors’ options lapsed unexercised during the period. The market price of the shares when the options were exercised by Clive Cooke
was 23p and by Marcei Wolf 30p. Clive Cooke exercised these options whilst the shares of Intercapital plc were suspended and thaimarkst
price given is the mid-market price on the day of suspension (10th July 1998).

1992 No. 3 Share Option Scheme

Number of
options
during Date from
At1st the year At 3ist which

January 1998 Granted  exercised March1999 exercisable Expivy date

Michael Spencer - - - - - -
Peter Buckley - - - - - -
Clive Cooke 150,000 - - 150,000 17.02.97 16.02.2001
David Gelber - - - - - -
John Nixon - - - - - -
Jonathan Robson - - - - - -

Kim Taylor 150,000 - - 150,000 17.02.97  15.02.2001
Hiroshi Watanabe - - - - - -
Marcel Wolf 150,000 - - 150,000 17.02.97 16.02.2001
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The No. 3 Share Option Scheme has not been submitted to the Inland Revenue for approval under Schedule 8 to the Income and
Corporation Taxes Act 1988. All existing options were granted on 17th February 1994, No further options can be granted under this aot-eme.

In normal circumstances, an option may be exercised:

() astoone third of the shares in respect of which it was granted on or after the third anniversary of its date of grant;
(i} astoan additional one third of such ordinary shares on or after the fourth such anniversary; and

i) as to the remaining one third of such ordinary shares on or after the fifth such anniversary;

and in each case before the seventh such anniversary.

The exercise price is £1.00 per share. No directors’ options lapsed unexercised during the period.

Long-Term Employee Share Plan

Atist Number of options At 31st

January during the year March

1988 Granted Exercised 1999

Michael Spencer - - - -
Peter Buckley - - - -
Clive Cooke 25,000 - (25,000) -
David Gelber - - - -
John Nixon - - - -
Jonathan Robson - - - -
Kim Taylor 20,000 - (20,000} -
Hiroshi Watanabe - - - -
Marcel Wolf 25,000 - (25,000) -

This plan was infended to obtain a financial commitment from directors and selected employees to acquire a certain number of sharas and
to match that commitment with a right to acquire further shares subject to continued employment within the Group. No further options can
be granted under this scheme.

The exercise price of the matching option was 1.0p per share. This feature meant that in most tax jurisdictions the market value of 11
shares at the date of exercise of the option was treated as being subject to income tax.

No directors’ options lapsed unexercised during the period. The market price of the shares when the options were exercised by
Clive Cooke and Kim Taylor was 23p and by Marcel Wolf 30p. Clive Cooke and Kim Taylor exercised these options whilst the shares of
Intercapital plc were suspended and the market price given is the mid-market price on the day of suspension (10th July 1988).

7. Directors’ Interests

Clive Cooke is a holder of Floating Rate Secured Convertible Loan Stock 2001 in the surn of £350,010 (1997: £350,010) and has the right
to convert the stock into ordinary shares of the Company at their then market value. The right can be exercised at any time up to

27th June 2001, provided that the ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

16th June 1999
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

15 months ended 31st March 1998

Intercapital plc and Subsidiary Undertakings

{aws vestated)

15 months 14 months
31st March 31st Becember
1998 1997
Note £000 £'000
Tumover 2
Continuing operations 166,314 146,794
Acquisitions 35,703 -
202,017 146,794
Discontinued operations 21,645 42,235
Total turnover 223,662 189,029
Total operating expenses (including amortisation of goodwill of £2.14m) 3 {222,006) (183,868}
Exceptional operating expense 4 (20,140) {7,782)
Operating (loss)/profit
Continuing operations (19,968) 2,654
Acquisitions 5,148 -
(14,820} 2,654
Discontinued operations {3,664) {(5,275)
Total operating loss (18,484} [2,621)
{Loss)fincome from interests in associated undertakings — discontinued operations (26) 572
Exceptional items in respect of associated undertakings - discontinued operations 5 - (1,500)
Loss on sale of operations ~ discontinued operations 6and 16 {16,035) -
Loss onordinary activities before interast (34,545) {3,549)
Other interest receivable and similar income 9 3,021 2,039
Interest payable and similar charges 10 {1,605) {1,634)
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (33,129) 13,144
Tax on loss on ordinary activities 11 {5,930) T R_,771)
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (32,059) 15,915}
Equity minority interests 14 (84}
Loss for the financial period (39,045) 15,999}
Ordinary dividends 12 (3,676) (924)
Retained loss for the financial period 24(a) (42,721) (6,923)
Earnings per ordinary share 13 (18.87)p 4.87p
Dituted earnings per ordinary share 13 (18.87)p 4.87)p
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Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

15 months ended 31st March 1999

Intercapital plc and Subsidiary Undertakings

15 months 12 months

3ist March 31st December

1999 1997

£'000 £000

Loss for the financial pericd (39,045} 15,999)
Exchange adjustments on foreign currency net investments 1,008 {2,176)
Unrealised surplus on revaluation of properties - 875
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the peried 1,008 {1,301}
Total recognised gains and losses since the last annual report (38,037) 17,300)

There is no material difference between the loss on ordinary activities before taxation, the loss for the period stated above and their

historical cost equivalents.

The notes on pages 46 to 73 form part of these accounts.

Auditors’ report - page 75.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

15 months ended 31st March 1999

Intercapital plc and Subsidiary Undertakings

3ist 31st 31st st
March March  December December
1999 1998 1897 1997
Note £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets 14 46,773 -
Tangible fixed assets 15 18,493 14,811
Investments:
Interests in associated undertakings 16(b) - 12,899
Other investments 16({b) 4,091 1,086
69,357 28,796
Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year 17 4,364 4,757
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 17 55,486 41,625
Investments 18 6,355 10,986
Cash at bank and in hand 19 28,192 23,359
94,397 80,727
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 20
Other creditors (68,997) (45,866)
Convertible debt 563) (569)
(69,560) (46,435)
Net current assels 24,837 4,292
Total assets less current liabilities 94,194 o %3,088
Creditors: amounts falling due aftermore than one year 21 {6,097) {22,184}
Provisions for liabilities and charges 28 (8,324) -
Net assets 78,703 40,904
Capital and reserves: -
Called-up share capital 23 91,888 30,792
Share premium account 24(a) 5,760 5,273
Revaluation reserve 24(a) 875 875
Other reserves 24{a) (1,978) {4,049)
Profit and loss account 24{3) (17,890} 8,002
Equity shareholders’ funds 25 78,655 40,893
Equity minerity interests 48 11
Total capital employed 78,703 - 40,904

Approved by the Board on 16th June 1999 and signed on its behalf by

MICHAEL SPENCER }

KIM TAYLOR } Directors }(

The notes on pages 46 to 73 form part of these accouhts. ' /

Auditors’ report —page 75.
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Company Balance Sheet

15 months ended 31st March 1999

Intercapital plc
31st J1st Jst Jist
March March  December December
1999 1999 1997 1897
Note £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Investments:
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 18(b) 131,199 71,416
Other investments 18(b) 54 428
131,253 71,844
Current assets
Debtors: amounts falling due after one year 17 - 442
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year 17 81,820 75,501
Cash at bank and in hand 19 779 2,915
82,592 78,948
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 20
Other creditors (89,901) (81,049}
Convertible debt (563) (569)
(90,484) {81,618)
Net cumrent liabilities (7,865) (2,670)
Total assets less current liabilities 123,388 69,174
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 21 {880) 18,282)
Net assets 122,508 50,892
Capital and reserves:
Called-up share capital 23 91,888 30,792
Share premiurm account 24(b} 5,760 5,273
Other reserves 24(b}) 1,464 1,520
Profit and loss account 24(b) 23,386 13,307
Equity shareholders’ funds 122,508 50,892

Approved by the Board on 16th June 1999 and signed on its behalf by

MICHAEL SPENCER }
KIMTAYLOR } Directors vt

The notes on pages 46 to 73 form part of these acqounts.

Auditors’ report - page 75.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

15 months ended 31st March 1292

Intercapital plc and Subsidiary Undertakings

15 months 2raonths
31stMarch J1st December
1999 1997
Note £'000 £'000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 32 12,281 3,137
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from retums on investments and servicing of finance 33 404 (20)
Taxation
UK corporation tax paid (4,014) (2,727)
Overseas tax paid (1,485) 2,984
Tax paid (5,499) {&5,711)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (11,144) 11,135)
Sale of tangible fixed assets 1,387 2,579
Sale of fixed asset investments 366 292
Purchase of fixed asset investments (910) (147)
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investrment (10,301) 8,411}
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of minority interests (100) {1,148}
Deferred consideration in respect of subsidiary undertaking - 2,118)
Sale of subsidiary undertakings/operations 16(a} 5,488 -
Sale of associated undertaking 16(a} 3.003 -
Net cash disposed of with subsidiary undertakings (70} -
Cost of subsidiary undertakings acquired {1,083} -
Net cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings 16(a} 6,916 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from acquisitions and disposals 14,154 (3,264)
Equity dividends paid - {4,619)
Cash inflow/(outflow) before use of liquid resources and financing 11,039 +18,888)
Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources 34 2,630 5,186
Financing
Share issue costs {1,690) -
Issue of ordinary share capital 3,006 -
Increase in short-term loans 2,560 -
(Decrease)/increase in long-term loans (17,456) 347
Loan from Nittan Exco Limited 3,003 7,371
Payment of principal under finance leases (404} {1,434)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing {(10,981) 6,284
Increase/(decrease) in cash 36 2,688 {7,418)
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended Jist March 1989

1. Principal accounting policies
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom. A summary of the rrore
important Group accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, is set out below.

(a) Changes in accounting policies and adoption of new Accounting Standards

The Company has adopted the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard No. 9 “Associates and Joint Ventures”, No. 10 “Goodwii and
Intangible Assets”, No. 11 “Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill”, No. 12 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”,
No. 13 “Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments: Disclosures” and No. 14 “Eamings Per Share”.

The Group in the period terminated permanently its operations in a number of geographical locations and certain products as descriced in
the Financial Review. These terminations had a material effect on the nature and focus of the Group’s operations and represented z
material reduction in its operating facilities. The assets, liabilities, results and activities of these operations were clearly distinguishabie
physically, operaticnally and for financial reperting purposes. The prior period’s comparatives have accordingly been restated.

{b) Basis of accounting
The accounts are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of certain fixed assets

(c) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated profit and loss account and the balance sheet include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings
made up to 31st March.

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of during an accounting period are included in the consolidated profit andt loss
account from or up to the date control passes.

Intra-Group sales and profits are eliminated on consolidation and turnover and profit figures relate to external transactions only. On
acquisition of a subsidiary, all of the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities that exist at the date of acquisition are recorded at their fair vaiu:s
reflecting their condition at that date. All changes to those assets and liabilities and the resulting gains and losses that arise after the Group
has gained control of the subsidiary are charged to the post-acquisition profit and loss account,

Goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiary undertakings, representing the excess of the cost of shares over the fair value of the
identifiable net tangible assets acquired, was written off to reserves in respect of acquisitions prior to 1st January 1998, The goodwiil
previously written off has not been reinstated in the balance sheet. In accordance with FRS10, goodwill arising on acquisitions since
1stJanuary 1998 has been capitalised and is being amortised through the profit and loss account over its useful economic life. Given the
volatile characteristics of the industry in which the Group operates, a life of ten years has been selected. Other purchased goodwillis”
eliminated by amortisation through the profitand loss account over its useful economic life. If a subsidiary associate or business is
subsequently sold or closed, any goodwill arising on acquisition that was written off directly to reserves or that has not been amorticed
through the profit and loss account is taken into account in determining the profit or loss on sale or closure.

(d) Associated undertakings
Entities in which the Group has an interest comprising not less than 20% and not more than 50% of the voting capital and over whic! it
exerts significant influence are treated as associated undertakings.

The consclidated profit and loss account includes the appropriate share of profits less losses of all material associated undertakings tased
on latest available audited accounts together with unaudited management accounts for the period from the date of the audited accounts to
31st March. The Group's share of post-acquisition retained profits and reserves is added to the cost of investment in the consolidanes?
balance sheet. Goodwill attaching to interests in associated undertakings was written off to reserves in respect of acquisitions prior ic»

1st January 1998. The goodwill previously written off has not been reinstated in the balance sheet,

(&) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation. Where tangible fixed assets are revalued at an amount higher than cost, the revaluation
surplus is credited to non-distributable reserves. Where the revalued amount is lower than cost, the difference between cost and va'vation
is written off in the profit and loss account, Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of tangible fixed assets on a straight
line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. The principal annual rates are as follows:

%

Freehold property 2

Furniture, fixtures and equipment NS 3315
Motor vehicles oF - 3315

Fixed assets held under finance leases are capitalised and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the useful life of eqi-aient
owned assets. Leasehold properties are amortised over 50 years or the remaining term of the lease if shorter.

46 Intercapital plc Report and Accounts 1998 .



A I




Al 2l l1is 8 8l J_..1.1 .

1. Principal accounting policies {continued)

{f} Investments
Investments included in fixed assets are stated at cost less provision for any permanent diminution in value.

Current asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Interest income, including interest on government securities, is accrued on a daily basis. Other investment income is accounted for when it
becomes receivable.

{g) Leased assets
Where assets are financed by leasing agreements that give rights approximating to ownership, the assets are treated as if they had feen
purchased outright. The amount capitalised is the present value of the minimum lease payments payable during the lease term,

The corresponding leasing commitments are shown as creditors due within one year and after one year. Lease payments are treated as
consisting of a capital and an interest element and the interest is charged to the profit and loss account using the actuarial method.

All other leases are operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to operating profit on a straight line basis over the lease tesm.

{h} Matched principal business

Certain companies in the Group are involved as matched principal in the purchase and simultaneous commitment to sell equities and
securities between third parties. The trades are complete only when both sides of the deal are matched, and so risk for these companies
arises in the event of one side of the transaction remaining unsettled. Substantially all the transactions settie within a short period of time
and the settlement risk is considered 1o be minimal. To reflect the substance of the transactions and be in accordance with industry
practice, the amounts due to and payable by counterparties are offset, and the net amountincluded in trade debtors. The gross position is
disclosed in note 17 to the accounts.

) Unsetiled transactions
Unsettled transactions are matched principal deals which have not settled in the normal course of trading. These amounts are shown gross
and included within trade debtors and trade creditors in notes 17 and 20.

(i Deferred taxation
Tax deferred or accelerated is accounted for in respect of all material timing differences, including those arising from the provision o7
employee pensions, to the extent that it is probable that an asset or liability will crystallise.

(K} Pension costs

The Group makes contributions to various pension plans which cover the majority of employees and which are charged against prefits. In
the UK employees are covered by defined contribution schemes. The assets of the schemes are held by trustees and are kept separate
from those of the Group. Qverseas pension plans vary according to local requirements, but are generally provided by contributions to
government, insured or self-administered schemes.

() Foreign currencies

The balance sheets of overseas subsidiary undertakings expressed in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates o
exchange ruling at the end of the accounting pericd. The profit and loss accounts of these undertakings are translated at monthly weighted
average exchange rates for the year. Differences on exchange arising from the retranslation of the opening net investment in subsidiary
undertakings, and from the translation of the results of those undertakings at average rate, are taken to reserves and are reported iine
statement of total recognised gains and losses.

Other foreign currency assets and liabilities are transtated at the rates ruling at the end of the accounting pericd and gains or losses “hereon
are taken to the profit and loss account in the year in which they arise.

The Company has in the period matched external borrowings with its investment in a subsidiary undertaking.

(m) Derivative Instruments

The Group uses a range of Derivative Instruments, including Forward Foreign Exchange and Foreign Exchange Options contrac's. These
Derivative Instruments are used for hedging purposes. Such contracts are matched at their inception to expected future cash flows from
specific income or expense. Gains and losses are released to the profit and loss account to match the income and costs of underiying
transactions they are intended to hedge. At a period end outstanding Forward Foreign Exchange contracts used as ahedge are not
revalued, but are carried forward to match against corresponding gains or losses from the original exposures.

(n) Brokerage income
Brokerage income is accounted for at the date of the transaction.

(o} Turnover

Turnover, exclusive of sales taxes, represents:

(i} for money and cther broking transactions, the invoiced brokerage charges for the year less commissions payable to third parties;
(ii) for other transactions, the invoiced value of goods sold or services provided for the year.
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

2. Group turnover, loss before interest and taxation and net assets

All the Group’s turnover and loss before interest and taxation arose from wholesale money and securities broking.

The geographical analysis of turnover is as follows:

{as rnstated)}
15 months 12 months
st 3ist
March (asrestated) (asrestated) (asrestated) Decgmber
1999 1997
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued
Europe 79,993 32,408 5,884 118,285 71,481 - 10,666 82,147
North America 73,092 1,233 7,679 82,004 63,836 - 17,226 81,062
Asian Pacific 13,229 2,062 8,082 23,373 11,477 - 14,343 . 25,820
166,314 35,703 21,645 223,662 146,794 - 42,235 189,029
The turnover analysis is based on turnover by origin. The results for turnover by destination would not be materially different.
The geographical analysis of loss before interest and taxation is as follows:
(as mstated)
15 months 12 months
st 3ist
March ({asrestated) (asrestated) (asrestated) Diecember
1999 1997
£:000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued
Eurcpe (12,252) 6,194 (2,739) {8,797) 796 - (659) 137
North America (7,755) (726) (17,835) (26,316) 471 - 2,032) {1,561}
Asian Pagcific
— subsidiary undertakings 39 320) 3,324 3,043 1,387 - {2,584) {1,197}
- associated undertakings = - (2,475) (2,475} - - {928) (928)
(Loss)/profit before interest  (19,968) 5,148 (19,725} {34,545) 2,654 - (6,203} 3.549)
The geographical analysis of net operating assets is as follows:
st st
March December
1999 1997
£'000 £'000
Europe 34,128 15,969
North America 19,874 22,118
Asian Pacific — subsidiary undertakings 3,289 6,666
- associated undertakings - -12,899
Net operating assets 57,291 57,653
Non-operating assets/{liabilities) 21,412 1i6,749)
Net assets 78,703 40,904

Cash and current asset investments have been included in net operating assets. Goodwill has been excluded.
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3. Total operating expenses

(a5 wstated)
15 months 12 months
Jist J1st
March (asrestated) (asrestated) (asrestated) December
1999 1997
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued
Staff costs (see note 8) 107,361 19,818 15,177 142,356 93,480 - 28,627 122,107
Amounts written off fixed
asset investments:
Due to permanent
diminution in value 624 - - 624 17 - - 17
Due to temporary
fluctuations in value 8 - - 8 243 - - 243
632 - - 632 260 - - 260
Amounts written off current
asset investments:
Due to temporary
fluctuations in value - - - - (84) - 16 (68}
Depreciation and amounts
written off:-
Tangible fixed assets 4,901 280 634 5,815 3,084 - 1,212 4,286
Assets held under finance leases 288 - - 288 240 - - 240
5,189 280 634 6,103 3,324 - 1,212 . 4,536
Amortisation of goodwill - 2,140 - 2,140 - - - -
Other operating expenses:
Auditors' remuneration
(including expenses)
(Company: £92,675,
1997; £53,175) 369 39 5 413 342 - 49 391
Hire of plant and machinery 201 - - 20 19 - - 19
Hire of other assets -
operating leases 6,732 64 169 6,965 6,780 - 1,093 7,873
Other expenses 47,812 7,858 7,526 63,196 36,029 - 12,721 4B,750
55,114 7,961 7,700 70,775 43,170 - 13,863 £7,033
Total operating expenses 168,206 30,199 23,511 222,006 140,150 - 43,718 183,868

The remuneration of the Group's auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, for provision of non-audit services to the Group in the Unitea
Kingdom was £929,000 (1997: £269,000). These non-audit services comprise tax advisory, compliance work and merger related expenses
and includes £67,000 paid to Coopers & Lybrand prior to the date of appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors. Non-avcit fees

in 1897 comprise solely amounts paid to the previous auditors Coopers & Lybrand.
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1899

4, Exceptional operating expense

15 months i raonths
3ist 31st
March Necember
1999 1997
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 . 2000

Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued Continuing Acquisitions Discontinued
Property relocation costs - (378) {12,412) {3,990) - - {3,990)
Redundancy costs 210) (1,420) (7,320) - - {3.065) {3,065}
Office closure costs - - - - - (727) (727
Acquisition costs {146) - (408) - - - -
(356) (1,798) (20,140) (3,990) - {3,792) {7,782}

Reference should be made to the Financial Review for further explanation of the nature of these items.

5. Exceptional items in respect of associated undertakings

15 months 12 months

31st March 1999 31st December 1997

2000 £'000

Provision for diminution in value of fixed asset investments - 1,500}
- (1,500}

6. Loss on sale of operations - discontinued operations
The loss on the sale of operations of £16,035,000 includes the sum of £17,892,000 in goodwill, previously written off to reserves,
transferred to the profit and loss account in respect of businesses disposed of. The taxation charge is increased by £571,000 as aresult of

the disposal of operations.

7. Directors’ emoluments

The emolumenits of directors of Intercapital ple were:

15 months 12 months
31st March 1998 31st December 1997
£'000 £000
Fees as directors 73 80
Salary payments (including benefits in kind) 1,669 1,406
Pension contributions 269 222
Annual performance-related bonuses 294 -
Compensation for loss of office 794 -
Gains on exercise of share options 103 -
3,202 1,678
15 months 12 months
31st March 1999 31st Decembar 1997
£ £

Highest-paid director:
Salary including benefits in kind 426,534 402,559
Pension contributions 99,613 44,118
Gains on exercise of share options 71,449 -
597,596 446,677

No directors waived emocluments in respect of the 15 months ended 31st March 1929 (1997 Ni).
Retirement benefits are accruing to four directors (1987: four directors) under the Group’s defined contribution schemes.
Further details of directors’ emoluments are set out in the Board Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 35 to 40.
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8. Staffcosts
Staff costs during the period, including executive directors of the Group but excluding exceptional costs, amounted to:
15 months 12 months
31stMarch 1999 31st Decentber 1997
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries 130,239 111,935
Social security costs 9,502 7,923
Other pensicn costs 2615 2,249
142,356 122,107
The average weekly number of persons employed, including executive directors of the Group, was as follows:
15 months 1% months
31st March 1999 31st December 1997
£'000 £:000
Sales and broking 966 1,130
Administration 317 365
1,283 1,495
9. Other Interest receivable and similar income
15 months 12 months
31st March 1999 31st December 1897
£'000 £'000
Income from fixed asset investments;
Unlisted overseas 10 17
Income from current asset investments:
Listed overseas 35 -
Unlisted 653 325
Bank interest and other income 2,323 1,697
3,021 2,039
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

10. Interest payable and similar charges

15 months 12 months
31st March 1999 31st Decevsher 1997
£'000 £'000
On finance leases 202 153
On bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 5 years 1,383 1,481
1,605 1,634
11. Taxation

The tax charge is based on the profit for the period and comprises:
15 months 12 months
31st March 1999 31st December 1997
£'000 £'000
UK corporation tax at a rate of 31% (1997 31.5 %) 2,884 2,011
Advanced corporation tax written (back)/off {1,260) 500
Deferred taxation 2,711 (632
4,335 1,979
Less: Relief for overseas taxation (450) {476)
Cverseas taxation 2,076 1,082
Taxation arising on loss of the Group 5,961 2,585
Tax attributable to share of profits of associated undertakings {31) 186
5,930 2,771

The Financial Review on pages 22 to 27 provides further explanation of the tax charge.
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12, Dividends in respect of equity shares

15 monthsto 12 months to

31st March st Ducember

1999 1997

£'000 £'000

Dividend of 0.75p per share paid on 31st October 1997 - 924
Dividend proposed of 1p per share 3.676 -
3,676 924

13. Earnings per ordinary share

Earnings per share have been calculated based on the loss on ordinary activities after taxation and minority interests. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period was 206,969,274 (1997:123,166,034). The effect of unexercised opticns and

convertible loan stocks on earnings per share is anti-dilutive.

14. Intangible fixed assets

Goodwil

£000
Cost
At 1stJanuary 1998 -
Increase during the period 48,913
At3istMarch1999 48913
Amortisation
At 1st January 1998 -
Provided during the year {2,140)
At 31st March 1998 {2.,140)
Net book value .
At 31st March 1999 + 46,773
At 31st December 1997 -

Goodwill arising on the consolidation.of the acquired Intercapital subsidiary undertakings is being amortised over the directors’ estirnate of

its useful economic life of ten years,
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

15. Tangible fixed assets
Land and Buildings

Fumiture
Short fixtures & Motor
Freehaold leasehold  equipment vehicles Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation
At 1st January 1998 _
Cost 405 4,621 33,861 2,240 41127
Valuation 1,136 - - - 1,136
Exchange adjustments 6 32 189 11 238
Additions - 1,529 9,280 439 11,248
Disposals {30) (266) (10,837} (1,444) {12,577)
Subsidiaries acquired/(sold) - (436) 3,530 61 3,155
At 31st March 1999
Cost 381 5,480 36,023 1,307 43,191
Valuation 1,136 - - - 1,136

1,517 5,480 36,023 1,307 44,327
Depreciation
At 1st January 1998 150 1,429 24,778 1,095 27,452
Exchange adjustments 3 (31) 175 5 152
Charge for the period 8 346 5,328 421 6,103
Disposals (30) (216) (8,140 (835} (9,221)
Subsidiaries acquired/(sold) ~ (428) 1,730 46 1,348
At 31st March 1999 131 1,100 23,871 732 25,834
Net book value
At 31st March 1999 1,386 4,380 12,152 575 18,493
At 31st December 1397 1,391 3,192 9,083 1,145 14,811

Motor vehicles include assets held under finance leases with a net book value of ENil (1997: £203,000).
Furniture, fixtures and equipment include assets held under finance leases with a net book value of £1,626,000 (1887: £550,000).

The freshold property which the Group occupies was valued independently as at 31st December 1997 on the basis of existing uss vaiue.

ol IR RL
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16. Fixed asset investments
{a) Movement in subsidiary and associated undertakings

(i ©On26th October 1998, Exco plc acquired the broking operations of Intercapital in return for the issue of 231,801,727 ordinary shares,
representing 63.07% of the enlarged issued share capital. Goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Intercapital companies durirsy the
period has been capitalised and is being amortised over the directors’ estimate of its useful economic life of ten years.

The subsidiary undertakings acquired were as follows:-

Intercapital Commedity Swaps Ltd
Intercapital Equity Derivatives itd
Intercapital Securities Ltd

Intercapital Brokers Ltd

Intercapital Commodity Derivatives Inc.
Intercapital Securities Inc.

Intercapital Group (Austrafia) Pty Ltd

Analysis of the acquisition of the Intercapital companies:

Fair
Book Value Fair
value adjustments value
£'000 £'000 £'000
Tangible fixed assets 1,938 - 1,938
Investments 1,651 - 1,651
Debtors 23,176 - 23,176
Cash at bank and in hand 6,916 - 6,916
Crediters (21,243} - {21,243)
Bank overdrafts - - -
Net assets 12,438 - 12,438
Goodwill arising on acquisition 418,913
| 61,351
Satisfied by:
Fair value of shares issued 60,268
Costs associated with the acquisition 1,083
61,351

The directors are of the opinion that the investment in the acquired Intercapital companies has been included in the Company's balance
sheet at its fair value at the date of acquisition and have not identified any adjustments to be made to the book value of assets acqtiiied.

The acquired Intercapital companies earned a profit after tax of £8,432,000 in the year ended 31st March 1998. The summarised pecifit and

loss account for the period 1st April 1998 to the effective date of acquisition is as follows:

£'000
Turnover 84,232
Operating profit r 3,946
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 15,484
Taxation {5,159)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 10,325

Owing to the merger reorganisation and restructuring it has not been possible to identify separately the effects of the acquisition or cash

flows.
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

16. Fixed asset investments (continued)
{iy Gn 26th October 1998 the Group completed the sale of 9% of its shareholding in Nittan Exco Limited for ¥600 miillion {£3,003,00(.
The disposal is analysed as follows:

£°000
Met assets disposed of; 4,735
Loss on disposal (including goodwill of £942,065) 11,732)
3,003
Satfisfied by:
Cash 3,003
(iify On 17th December 1998 the Group sold its sharsholding in Exco Shorcan Limited for CAN $434,455 (£178,000).
The disposal is analysed as follows:
£'000
Net assets disposed of: 19,401
Loss on disposal (including goodwill of £14,193,901) {15,223)
178
Satisfied by:
Cash 178
In addition as part of the Sale Agreement, intercompany creditors were settled to the value of CAN $695,545 (£260,000),
(iv} On 31st December 1998 the Group sold its moneybroking operations in Singapore to its Japanese partner, Nihon Tanshi Co.
Limited for Sin $14,603,470 (£5,310,353). The disposal is analysed as follows;
£000
Net assets disposed of: 1,822
Gain on disposal 3488
. 5,310
Satisfied by:
Cash 5,310

{v) On 31st March 1999 the Group completed the sale of 16% of its shareholding in Nittan Exco Limited for ¥1,532,037,206 (£7,882,958),
The disposal is analysed as follows:

£'000
Net assets disposed of: -“8,358
Loss on disposal {including goodwill of £1,674,781) ) _(4_7?}
7,883
Satisfied by:

Partial reduction of the loan from Nittan Exco Limited 7,883

(vi} The Group is disposing of the spot foreign exchange business of Exco Bierbaum Devisen GmbH. The business is being acquired by
local management for a consideration of DM50,000. The net loss arising on the transaction of £2,093,162 {including goodwill ¢f
£1,080,762) has been accrued in these accounts. The effective date of the transaction is 1st April 1999; the conditions to the contract
were fulfilled prior to the signature of these accounts.
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16, Fixed asset investments (continued)
{b) Investments

Group Company

3ist st 3ist  Bist

March  December March  December

1999 1997 1689 1997

£000 £'000 £000 £'000

Shares in subsidiary undertakings - - 131,199 71,4186
Interests in unlisted investments 4,043 1,039 54 423
Interests in listed investments overseas 48 47 - -
interests in associated undertakings - 12,899 - -
4,091 13,985 131,253 71,844

The aggregate market value of unlisted investments was for the Group £4,043,000 (1997: £1 ,039,000) and the Company
£54,000 (1997: £428,000).

Group Company
Sharesin
Group
Qther under Other
Associates  investments Associates takings investments
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost;
At 1st January 1998 16,353 1,805 - 87,134 1,116
Exchange adjustments 933 2 - - -
Additions - 910 - 63,050 - 250
Disposals {4,594) 8,775) - - -
Share of retained profit for the period (133) - - - -
Transfers {12,559) 12,559 - - -
At 31st March 1999 - 6,497 - 150,184 ‘ 1,366
Amounts written off:
At Tst January 1998 (3,454) {719) - (15,718 (688)
Exchange adjustments - - - - -
Disposals 942 1,608 - - -
Amounts written off during the period - (873) - (3,267) 624)
Transfers 2512 (2,512) - - -
At 31st March 1999 - (2,406) - (18,985} {1,312}
Net book value at 31st March 1999 - 4,091 - 131,199 54
Net book value at 31st December 1997 12,899 1,086 - 71,416 428

Principal subsidiary undertakings of the Group are set out on page 73.

In the opinion of the directors, the value of shares in Group undertakings is not less than the amount shown in these accounts.

The net book value at 31st March 1998 is made up as follows:-

£'000
Interests in participating investments 727
Other 3,364

4,091
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

16. Fixed asset investments (continued)
The Group's investment in associated undertakings comprises:

Group
31stMarch 31st Lecember
1999 1997
£'000 £'000
Interests in associates
Cost less amounts written off - {702)
Share of retained reserves - 3,601
Net book value - 12,899
Representing:
Share of tangible net asssts of associated undertakings - 12,899
Fixed asset investments
(a) Participating interests
Narme of undertaking Shareholding Country of Nature of Issued ordinary
incorporation business share capital
PT Exco Nusantara Indonesia 25% Indonesia Moneybreking Rp 2,105,000,000
KAF Astley & Pearce Sdn Bhd 40% Malaysia Moneybroking Ringgit 200,000
5-One Exco Co Limited 30% Thailand Moneybroking Baht 306,400,000
Nittan AP Marshalls {(Singapore) Private Ltd  20.06% Singapore Moneybroking Sint 350,000

Inthe year ended 31st December 1997 PT Exco Nusantara Indonesia, KAF Astley & Pearce Sdn Bhd and S-One Exco Co Ltd wers
classified as associated undertakings. The reorganisation of the Group’s interests in the Asian Pacific region has significantly reduc.ad the
Group’s influence over the business of these companies and accordingly, in the period ended 31st March 1998 they have been re: iussified

as fixed asset investments.

Although the Group’s interest in Nittan AP Marshalls (Singapare) Private Limited is just over 20%, the directors do not consider thai the
Group has significant influence over decisions of this Company and accordingly the Group's interest is treated as a fixed asset investment,

{b) Other

The Group’s interest in Nittan Exco Limited stood at 8% of its issued ordinary share capital at the balance sheet date, Nittan Exco Lirilied
ceased to be an associated undertaking of the Group on 26th October 1998 when, as a result of transactions which were part of ne
process of the merger, the Shareholders’ Agreement governing the affairs of the Company was terminated and the Group ceased i vave

significant influence over the business of Nittan Exco Limited.
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17, Debtors
Group Group Company Company
31st 3ist 31st J1st
March  December March  Devember
1999 1997 1999 1997
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Debtors due after cne year 4,364 4,757 - 442
Debtors due within one year 55,486 41,625 81,820 75,591
59,850 46,382 81,820 +76,033
Debtors due after one year:
Other debtors 3,235 3,340 - -
Prepayments and accrued income 1,128 696 - -
Advance corporation tax recoverable - 442 - 442
Deferred taxation (see note 22) - 279 - -
4,364 4,757 - 442
Debtors due within one year:
Trade debtors (see note} 40,049 27,929 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 78,402 73,624
Amounts owed by associated undertakings - 660 - -
Amounts owed by ultimate parent company 746 - - -
Other debtors 6,705 4,383 165 116
Prepayments and accrued income 2,660 2,760 - -
Dividends receivable from subsidiary undertakings - - 500 -
Taxation receivable 954 - - -
Advance corporation tax recoverable 2,753 1,851 2,753 1,851
Deferred taxation {see note 22) 1,619 4,042 - -
55;486 41,625 81,820 75,501

The Group is involved in the purchase and simultaneous sale of equities and securities. At 31st March 1999 the gross amount of purchase

and sale commitments in respect of these transactions was £1,000,262,370 (1997: £334,790,000).
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

18. Current asset investments
The following amounts are included in the net book value of current asset investments:

Group
31st March 31stiecember
1999 1997
£'000 £000
Unlisted ' 6,355 10,986
6,355 10,986
Their aggregate market value was:
Unlisted at directors’ valuation 6,355 10,986
6,355 10,986
Unlisted investments consist principally of certificates of deposit and Treasury Bills.
19. Cash at bank and cash in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes £562,604 {1997: £5689,404) which is charged to a third party creditor (see note 23).
20. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
The following amounts are included in creditors falling due within one year:
Group Group  Company  Company
31st 31st 31st Jst
March  December March  December
1999 1997 1999 1997
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable in one year or less 2,848 372 2,560 -
Trade creditors 11,724 14,539 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 78,187 72,502
Amounts owed to associated undertakings - 42 - -
Amounts owed to ultimate parent company 1,374 - - -
Loan from Nittan Exco Limited 2,720 8,787 2,720 6,787
Obligations under finance leases 504 404 - u
Other creditors:
Taxation payable 9,587 174 819 107
ACT on dividends paid and proposed - 231 - 231
Social security and taxation 4,007 1,871 - -
Other 1,630 2,737 126 111
Gonvertible Secured Loan Stock 2001 {see note 23) 563 569 563 569
Proposed dividends:
Company shareholders —final . 3,676 - 3,676 -
Accruals and deferred income 30,927 18,709 1,813 1,311
69,560 46,435 90,464 81,618
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21. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Group  Company  Company
st 31st 31st st
March  December March  December
1999 1997 1999 - 1997
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Bank loans

-repayable between one and two years 880 11,282 880 11,282
- repayable between two and five years - 7,000 - 7,060
Obligations under finance leases payable within two and five years 1,214 675 - -
Other creditors 4,003 3,227 - -

6,097 22,184 880
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

22. Deferred taxation
The provision for deferred taxation comprises:

Group Group  Company  Company
31st 31st 3ist 3ist
March  December March  December
1999 1997 1909 1897
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
(a) Deferred taxation asset:
Amount recognised:
Capital and other investment
allowances on fixed assets
and finance leases 427 228 - -
Other timing differences 1,192 4,003 - -
Deferred taxation asset 1,619 4,321 - -
Amount not recognised:
Capital and other investment
allowances onfixed assets
and finance leases 58 - - -
Losses 3,707 - - -
Other timing differences 4,451 2,119 - -
8,316 2,119 - -
(b The movement in deferred taxation during the period was as follows:
Group Company
£'000 £'000
At 1st January 1998 4,321 -
Exchange adjustment 159 -
Subsidiary undertakings sold (150} -
Charged to profit and loss account 2,711) -
At 31st March 1999 1,619 -

The deferred taxation asset for the Group at 31st March 1999 and 31st December 1997 has been included in debtors.

{c) No provision has been made for any taxation which would become payable on the distribution of profits of overseas subsidiary and

associated undertakings because there is no intention in the foreseeable future that such profits will be remitted in such a way as o

crystallise such tax liabilities.
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23. Share capital

Group and Compay
31st March 3 st December
1959 1997
£'000 £:000
Authorised:

490,000,000 ordinary shares of 25p each 122,500 43,000
122,500 43,000

Allotted, called-up and fully paid:
367,553,711 ordinary shares of 25p each 91,888 30,792
91,888 30,792

On 26th October 1998 the authorised share capital was increased by £79,500,000 by the creation of 318,000,000 ordinary shares of 25p
each. Shares were allotted fully paid as follows:

{i) On 26th October 1998, 231,801,727 ordinary shares were issued at 26.0p per share in consideration of the acquisition of the Intercapital
companies for £60,268,449. On 26th October 1998, 12,000,000 ordinary shares were issuted at 25p per share to Nihon Tanshi Co.
Limited for £3 million in cash.

(i During the 15-month period to 31st March 1999, 585,950 ordinary shares were allotted at 1.0p per share, totalling £5,860 upon the
exercise of options under the Long~Term Employee Share Plan.

Holders of Floating Rate Secured Convertible Loan Stock 2001 in the sum of £562,604 (1997: £569,404) (included in creditors due within
one year) have the right to convert their stock into ordinary shares of the Company at their then market value. The right can be exeivised at
any time up to 27th June 2001, provided that the ordinary shares of the Cormpany are listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Of the total of 1,350,000 options outstanding under the 1992 No. 3 Share Option Scheme described in the Board Report on Direciors'
Remuneration on pages 39 and 40, at 31st March 1998, 4,254 were to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company. The optioiis are
exercisable up to 16th February 2001 at a price of £1.00 per share. At 31st March 1999, 456,300 matching share options were outstanding
under the Long-Term Employee Share Plan. All these options are to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company, 106,000 of these
options are exercisable up to 18th July 2001 and 350,300 of these options are exercisable up to 15th July 2004. 47,000 of the options are
exercisable at a price of 25p per share and 402,300 at a price of 1.0p per share.
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

24, Reserves
(a) Group
Share premium Revaluation Other Profit&loss
account reserve reserves account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 1998 5,273 875 {4,049 8,002
Exchange translation - - 1,256 {248)
Arising on share issues 2177 - - -
Share issue costs {1,690) - - -
Goodwill reinstated on disposal of businesses - - - 7,892
Transfer of realised exchange on subsidiary undertaking disposed - -~ 815 (815}
Loss for the year - - - (42,721}
At 31st March 1992 5,760 875 (1,978) 17,890)

Of the exchange translation movement of £1,256,000 in the period, £145,000 (1997: gain of £170,000) relates to the net exchange luss on

foreign currency borrowings.

Other reserves comprise:
Group
J1st March J1st December
1999 1997
2000 £7000
Unrealised exchange losses (2,150) 4.221)
Other non-distributable reserves 172 172
(1,978) (4,049)
(h) Company
Share premium Other Fiofit&loss
account reserves account
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 1998 5,273 1,520 13,307
Exchange translation - (56) -
Arising on share issues 2177 - -
Share issue costs (1,690) - -
Profit for the year after dividends - - 0,089
At 31st March 1989 5,760 1,464 3,396

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the parent company’s profit and loss account has not been included in these
accounts. The parent company’s profit for the financial year was £13,765,000 (1997 loss of £15,676,000).
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25. Reconciliation of movements in equity sharecholders’ funds

15 months 1#onths
31stMarch 31st December
1999 1997
£000 £'000
Loss for the financial period (39,045} £3,999)
Ordinary dividends (3,676) (924)
42,721) (5.923)
Other recognised gains and losses relating to the period (net) 1,008 {1,301}
Nominal value of ordinary shares issued 61,096 -
Premium (net of issue expenses) on shares issued 487 -
Goodwill transferred to the profit and loss account in respect of disposals of businesses 17,802 -
Goodwill written off during the period - {3,623)
Net addition to/(deduction from) shareholders’ funds 37,762 (11,847}
Opening shareholders’ funds 40,893 52,740
Closing sharsholders’ funds 78,655 40,893
26. Cumulative goodwill
During the period the maovement in net goodwill taken to reserves was as follows:
Group
£000
At 1st January 1998 127,671
Eliminated on disposal 117,892)
At 31st March 1999
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

27.Pension costs
{2) Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribution schemes throughout the world,

The total pension cost for the Group was £2,249,000 (1997: £1,867,000) of which £308,000 (1297; £322,000) related to overseas schemes.
At the year-end contributions accrued but not paid totalled £Nil (1997: £2,000).

(b} Defined benefit schemes

The Group has significant funded defined benefit schemes in Germany, Switzerland and the USA.

inthe USA the pension costs ars assessed in accordance with a qualified actuary’s advice. The last actuarial assessment was performed
by anindependent actuary as at 31st March 1999,

At the most recent formal valuation the main assumption was:

USA
Investment return 8.5%

This scheme was closed as at 1st July 1996.

in Germany the defined benefit scheme is wholly reinsured with a German insurance company with the pension obligation being
determined by employse contributions to a defined contribution scheme.,

In Switzerland the defined benefit schemes are wholly reinsured with Swiss insurance companies, with the pension obligation being
determined by the premiums paid to the reinsurers. .

The market values of the schemes were £4,108,000 (1997: £4,341,000) and the level of funding was considered to be in accordance with
requirements. At the present time there are expected to be no material changes to pensions arrangements which would affect future costs.

During the period defined benefit confributions charged to the profit and loss account were £366,000 (1997: £382,000) and at the year-end
contributions accrued but not yet due to be paid totalled £Nil (1997: £832,000),

As at 31st March 1999 no deficiencies are considered to exist on the basis of current funding levels.

28. Provisions for liabilities and charges
As set out in the Financial Review on page 23 the Group has made provisions against the onerous contractual obligation created by the
decision to move ali existing operations in London to Finsbury Circus.

The total provision is £8.4m and is expected to be utilised as follows:-

£m

Less than 1 year ) 4.1
1102 years 1.6
2to5years 1.8
Gver & years 19
9.4
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29. Contingent liabilities and commitments

{a) Capital commitments:

Group
31stMarch 31st December
1999 1997
£000 £000
Contracted for 1,274 . 3,112

(b} Other commitments
{i) In the normal course of business, the Company and its subsidiary undertakings have entered into forward commitments for the
purchase and sale of securities and foreign exchange.

(i) At 31st March 1999, the Group had annual commitments under operating leases as follows:

Group

31stMarch 31st December
1999 1997
£'000 £'000

In respect of leases for land and buildings expiring:
- within cne year 144 427
—between two and five years 526 772
—in more than five years 4,607 4137
5277 5,336

In respect of other leases expiring:

31st March 31st December
1968 1997
£'000 £'000
—within one year 852 585
- between two and five years 1,868 344
- in more than five years 23 -

2,743 929

(c) Contingent liabilities
The Company has given guarantees on behalf of various subsidiary undertakings in respect of their business. In addition:

- A subsidiary undertaking has given a guarantee on behalf of a third party in respect of property with a current passing rent of £104,000
per annum, the lease of which expires in 1999.

- The Company has issued a counter<indemnity to a bank in respect of a guarantee of A$200,000 given by the bank for a property
occupied by a subsidiary undertaking.

~The Company has entered into a guarantee to a bank in respect of a subsidiary’s obligations under a clearing and custodian agreerment,

A subsidiary undertaking is being sued by a former employee for alleged sexual harassment. The subsidiary undertaking has been advised
that it has a valid deferice to such claim and the directors are of the view that no material liability will fall on the Group as a result of such
litigation.

A subsidiary undertaking in Germany is disposing of part of its business to local management. Under the terms of the agreement, should
the local management’s trading company become statutorily insolvent and cease to pay pension premiums to its defined benefit pension
fund, the subsidiary undertaking would be liable for the pension premiums in respect of 2 members of the local management until they
reach 55. The total liability for these premiums totalled DM367,309 at 31st March 19989, Also should the local management’s trading
company become statutorily insolvent the subsidiary undertaking would be liable to pay 75 per cent. of the guaranteed fixed salarias in
respect of 3 members of the local managernent until 30th September 2000. This liability totalled DM1,098,630 at 31st March 1992.
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

29. Contingent liabilities and commitments (continued)

In February 1998, Intercapital Brokers Limited recruited 13 sterling swap brokers who were at that time employed by MW Marshalt (Financial
Services) Limited (“Marshalls”™). In August 1998, Marshalls and MW Marshall (UK} Limited, both subsidiaries of MW Marshall & Company
Limited, served proceedings on Intercapital Brokers Limited, Michael Spencer and one of the former Marshall employees, ¢laiming that they
induced and procured breaches of contract by the Marshalls employees. The claimis for darmages of £12 million, The defendants deny the
claims and are vigorously defending the proceedings. Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited and Intercapital Group Limited have agreed to
indemnify Intercapital Brokers Limited and the Group against any liabilities and expenses arising out of such legal proceedings. To this extent
the claim constitutes both a contingent liability and a matching contingent asset. Intercapital Brokers Limited became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company on 26th Cctober 1989,

A subsidiary undertaking in New York relocated to the World Trade Center in 1997. As part of this relocation, the subsidiary undertaking
received an employment incentive grant from the New York City Authorities. As a condition of this grant the subsidiary undertaking must meet
certain employment targets over the 15 year period of the grant. If these targets are not met all or part of the grant may have to be repaid. The
maximum potential repayment armount is $3.1 million.

30. Regulatory capital
Regulatory authorittes in Denmark, Germany, Singapore, the United Kingdom and the United States of America require that a minirrum
armount be maintained in liquid assets. Therefore the use of those funds may be restricted in accordance with such requirements.

31. Related party disclosures

It is considered that the related parties of the Group consist of the former associated undertakings and Intercapital Group Lirmnited, its
subsidiary Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited and their subsidiary companies, other than Intercapital plc and its subsidiaries.
Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited owns 63.07 per cent. of the issued share capital of Intercapital plc. All transactions with thess
related parties are carried out on an arms length basis. Caledonia Investments plc was, until 7th December 1998 considered to be z related
party of the Group by virtue of its 28.1 per cent. shareholding in the Company.

{a) Associated undertakings

In the normal course of its business the Group arranges transactions as an agent for its customers, Usually all the brokerage derivec from
the transaction is earned by the Group through one or more of its subsidiary undertakings. Itis, however, anintegral part of the Grou;'s
business that transactions are arranged for customers where a subsidiary undertaking earns the brokerage from one side of the transaction
but an associated undertaking earns brokerage from the other side.

During the year the Group received £145,585 (1997: £2,611,000) in brokerage from customers in these circumstances. In addition to these
amounts, the Group or its subsidiary undertakings received £81,763 (1997: £965,000} in fees from its associated undertakings for the
provision of technical, administrative and business services to its associated undertakings. These services included the provision ot
seconded management, systems and telecommunications know-how and information.

There were no provisions for doubtful debts due from such parties at these dates, nor had any amounts been written-off during the period
in respect of amounts due to or from related parties.

{b) Caledonia Investments pic b
Buring the period the Group paid director’s fees of £21,309 (1997: £16,500) to Caledonia Group Services Limited, a subsidiary unds:itaking
of Caledonia Investments plc, for the services of Peter Buckley as a non-executive director of the company. Caledonia Investments 2lc and
its subsidiary underiakings provided no other services to the Group.

(¢} Intercapital Group Limited

During the peried a subsidiary undertaking, Intercapital Group Services Inc, entered into a contract with DART Pty Limited, a subsiciary
undertaking of Intercapital Group Limited. The contract, for software customisation and associated licensing, totalled US$270,000
(£167,702) to be paid to DART in the year ending 31st March 2000. DART Pty Limited was also paid £341,326 for software support of the
Group’s London operations during the period.

Finisco Management Consulting Limited, a subsidiary undertaking of Intercapital Group Limited was paid £152,399 for software support of
the Lendon operations during the period.

A recharge of £15,261 to Intercapital Group Limited was made by a subsidiary undertaking in respect of Declan Kelly and Simon Mznszlt
who are directors of both the subsidiary undertaking and Intercapita! Group Limited and certain of its subsidiary undertakings.

Jonathan Robson, a non-executive director of the Company, is alse a director of Moneyline Inc, an associated undertaking of Intercapital
Group Limited. During the period, a subsidiary undertaking of the Group entered into a one year contract that will commence on 1stJune
1999 with Moneyline Inc for the provision of market data services. The total value of the contract will vary with usage. During the peric.d
Moneyline Inc also provided services to the Group totalling US$62,792.
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31. Related party disclosures (continued)

(d} Sale of Subsidiary Undertaking

On 17th December 1998 the Group sold its shareholding in Exco Shorcan Limited for CAN$434,455 (£178,000) to local management. The
purchasers included Winnico Holdings inc which is owned by, and has as its sole director, the spouse of James Magee who was a director of
Intercapital plc until 26th October 1998 when he resigned.

The terms of the Purchase Agreement also included the settlement of CAN$695,545 (£260,000) as due by Exco Shorcan Limited to intercapital
plc and its subsidiary undertakings.

32. Reconciliation of loss on ordinary activities before interest to net cash inflow from operating activities

15menths  15months  12months  12months

31st st st 3ist
March March  December  December
1999 1999 1997 1997
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
l.oss on ordinary activities before interest {34,545) (3,549}
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 6,103 T 4,536
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets ‘ ' 2,140 -
Goodwill previously written off to reserves 17,892 -
Share of losses/profits) of associates 26 (572) ‘
Exceptional items of associated undertakings - 1,500
Dividends received from associated undertakings 138 50
Loss of associates less dividends received
and exceptional items 164 a78
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 233 1,338
Decrease/(increase) in operating debtors and prepayments 8,456 . 9,246)
Increase in operating creditors and accruals 11,838 9,080
Net cash inflow from operating activities 12,281 3,137

ul

In relation to the exceptional operating expense of £20,140,000 (1897: £7,782,000), cash outflows of £6,385,000 (1997: £3,460,000)
accurred in the period to 31st March 1989.

33. Returns on investments and servicing of finance

15 months 12 months
3istMarch 31st-December
1999 1997
£'000 £000
Interest received 2,102 2,024
Interest paid (1,405) {1,495}
Interest paid on finance leases (157) (152)
income from fixed asset investments 10 17
Expenses paid in connection with long-term loans (146) {39
Dividends paid to minorities - (375)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from returns on investments and servicing of finance 404 ) {20)
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

34. Management of liquid resources

15 months 12 months
31st March 31st December
1999 1997
£'000 £'000
Cash withdrawn from short-term deposits 480 6,297
Sale/(Purchase) of US treasury securities 2,281 (1,081}
Purchase of short-term investments (131) (30)
Net cash inflow from management of liquid resources 2,630 5,186
35. Analysis of changes in financing during the year
Share Loansand Share  i.cansand
capital finance capital finance
(excluding lease  (excluding lease
premium)  obligations premium)  oiligations
1999 1999 1997 1997
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1st January 1998/1st January 1997 30,792 26,148 30,792 20,782
Cash inflows/{outflows) from financing 3,006 {12,297} - . 6,284
Isstie of ordinary share capital 58,090 - - -
Reduction of loan from Nittan Exco Limited - (7,883) - -
Inception of finance lease contracts - 1,031 - 76
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - 879 - {994)
At 31st March 1999/31st December 1997 91,888 7,878 30,792 26,148
36. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
15 months 12 months
3istMarch 31st December
1999 1997
£'000 £'000
Increase/{decrease) in cash 2,688 J,418)
Cash inflow from decrease in liquid resources 2,630} 15,186)
Decrease/(increase) in long-term loans 17,456 (347}
Increase in short-term loans (2,560} -
Loan from Nittan Exco Limited {3,003) (7,371)
Payment of principal under finance leases 404 1,434
Change in net cash resulting from cash flows 12,355 (18,888)
Reduction of loan from Nittan Exco Limited 7,883 -
New finance leases (1,031) {76)
Translation difference 651) 776
Movement in net funds 18,556 (18,188)
Net funds as at 1st January 1998/1st January 1997 7,825 EB,013
Net funds as at 31st March 1999/31st December 1297 26,381 7,825
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37. Analysis of net funds
At Cther At
1stJanuary non-cash  Exchange 3istMarch
1998  Cashflow changes movements 1899
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £2000
Net cash:
Cash at bank and in hand 23,359 28,192
| ess: deposits treated as liquid resources 4,244 16,367)
19,115 2,604 - 106 21,825
Bank overdrafts (372) 84 - - (288)
18,743 2,688 - 106 21,837
Liquid resources:
Deposits included in cash 4,244 2,102 - 21 6,367
Current asset investments 10,986 4,732 - 101 6,355
15,230 {2,630) - 122 12,722
Bebt:
Long-term loans (18,282) 17,456 - (54) (880}
Short-term loans - (2,560) - - 2,560}
Loan from Nittan Exco Limited 6,787) (3,003) 7,883 813) (2,720)
Finance leases (1,079) 404 (1,031) (12) 1,718)
{26,148} 12,297 6,852 (879) {7,878)
Net funds 7,825 12,355 6,852 (651} 26,381
Analysed in balance sheet:
Cash at bank and in hand 23,359 78,192
Current asset investments 10,986 6,355
Bank overdrafts (372) (288}
Short-term bank loans - (2,560}
Loan from Nittan Exco Limited (6,787) (2.720)
Finance leases due within one year (404) (504)
Finance leases due after one year (675) (1,214
Long-term bank loans (18,282) (880)

7,825 26,381

In addition to the non-cash changes shown above, the Company received consideration for the purchase of the Intercapital companies. The
consideration was in the form of issued shares as set out in note 16(a).
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Notes to the Accounts

15 months ended 31st March 1999

38. Financial Instruments
Short-term debtors and creditors have been excluded from all the following disclosures, other than the currency risk disclosures.

(a) Interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilities
The financial assets of the Group comprise cash and short-term deposits all of which are invested at floating rates.

The interest rate risk profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31st March 1899 was:

Floating rate Fixed rate Financial liabilities on
financial liabilities financial liabilities  which no interest is paid
£'000 ) £'000 £'000

Currency:

Sterling

—financial liabilities 3,724 1,008 -
- non-equity minority interests - - -
US Dollars - 120 -
EU currencies (excluding sterling) 1,956 86 -
Other currencies - - 315
At 31 March 1999 5,680 1,214 315

Al the Group’s creditors falling due within one year (other than bank and other borrowings} are excluded from the above table either due to
the exclusion of short-term items or because they do not meet the definition of a financial liability, such as tax balances.

In addition to the above, the Group’s provisions of £9,400,000 for vacant leasehold properties meet the definition of financial liabilities.
These financial liabilities are considered to be floating rate financial liabilities as, in establishing the provisions, the cash flows have bgen
discounted using a discount rate that is to be reappraised at each half-yearly reporting date to ensure that it reflects current marke?
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific in the liability.

{b) Maturity of financial liabilities
The Group’s financial liabilities are made up entirely of external bank borrowings and finance lease obligations. The maturity profile of
the bank borrowings is st out in the Financial Review on page 26 and the maturity profile of the finance lease obligations is set outin
notes 20 and 21.

{c) Currency exposure of monetary assets and liabilities
The table below shows the Group’s transactional exposure at 31st March 1999 that gives rise to the net currency gains and losses in the
profit and loss account. These comprise the monetary assets and liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in the functioral
currency of the Group company. Intra-Group assets and liabilities have been excluded:

EU
currencies
us (excluding Japanese
Functional currency of Sterfing Dollars Ster!ing) Yen Other Total
Group operation £'000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Sterling - 4,477 5,185 (2,484) 24 7,202
US Dollars 35 - - 1,380 179 1,594
EU currencies :
{excluding sterling) - 647) - - - 647
Swiss Francs 41 (1686) 19 - - {108)
Danish Krone 3 (215) (13} - 1 (224}
Singapore Dollars 4] (348) - 1 21) (372)
Australian Dollars (M 432 - 69 94 - 594
Total 74 3,533 5,11 (1,034 277 8,041

(d) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
There is no material difference between the fair value and book value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities.

(e} Gains and losses on hedges
The Group's policy on transactional currency exposures is explained in the Financial Review on page 26. At 31st March 1899 the Group
had an unrecognised loss on hedges of £11,521. This loss is expected to be recognised in the year ending 31st March 2000.
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39, Ultimate Parent Company

The directors regard Intercapital Group Limited, whichis registered in England and Wales, as the ultimate parent company. Accorcing to
the register kept by the Company, Intercapital Group Limited owns 88% of the issued share capital of Intercapital Brokerage Services
Limited, which owns 63.07% of the issued share capital of Intercapital plc, as at 31st March 1999. Copies of the latest published ac-ounts
of Intercapital Group Limited and Intercapital Brokerage Services Limited may be chtained from 16 Finsbury Circus, London EC2M 7R,

Subsidiary Undertakings
Intercapital plc

The following were the principal operating subsidiary undertakings of the Group at 31st March 1980:

Country of incorporation Nature of business Issued ordinary

Subsidiary undertakings or registration share capital
Intercapital Brokers {Australia) Limited Australia Moneybroking Aus$5C0,000
Intercapital Brokers Pty Limited Australia Meneybroking Aus$570,000
Intercapital Scandinavia A/S Denmark Moneyhroking Dkr2,700,000
*Intercapital Equity Derivatives Limited England Moneybroking £1069,000
Intercapital Europe Limited England Moneybroking £14.471,156
Exco Securities UK Limited England Moneybroking £2.121,000
Exco Bierbaum Devisen GmbH Germany Moneybroking DME,400,000
ICAP-Nittan Pte Limited Singapore Moneybroking Sin$ 1,590,000
Intercapital CMS (Switzerland} Limited Switzerland Moneyhroking Sfr 200,000
Intercapital America Inc USA Moneybroking US$438,000
intercapital FIB Pty Limited Australia Securities Broking Aus$300,000
Intercapital Fixed Income (Australia) Pty Limited Australia Securities Broking Aus$300,000
Intercapital Securities Pty Limited Australia Securities Broking Aus$100,000
*Intercapital Securities Limited England Securities Broking £95,000
*Exco WCLK Limited England Securities Broking £5,400,000
Intercapital Securities Deutschland GmbH Germany Securities Broking DM3.219,000
Intercapital Government Securities Inc. USA Securities Broking us$2,115
*Intercapital Securities Inc. USA Securities Broking _'iJS$341
Intercapital Energy Pty Limited Australia Commodity Broking Aus$10,000
Alpha Brokers (Metals) Limited (75.1%) England Commedity Broking . 30,000
*Intercapital Commaodity Swaps Limited England Commodity Broking 218,407
Intercapital Commodity Swaps Pte Limited Singapore Commodity Broking Sin%127,500

“Intercapital Commaeodity Derivatives Inc. USA Commodity Broking US$t
Intercapital Australia Pty Limited Australia Central Services Sus$12
*Intercapitat Managerment Services Limited England Central Services 1,000
Intercapital Group Services Inc ' USA Central Services US$500,000

Except where marked with an asterisk the above undertakings are owned indirectly. The Group’s interest in the nominal value of

issued ordinary shares is 100% unless otherwise stated.

The financial year-end of the subsidiary undertakings of the Group is 31st March, except for the following subsidiaries for which itis 7

31st December:

Astley & Pearce BV, Astley & Pearce (International) BV, Astley & Pearce Investments BV, Astley & Pearce (Netherlands) BV, Astley & Li';garce
{Curacao) NV, Exco Overseas Limited, Exco (Moneybrokers) Limited, Alpha Brokers (Metals) Holdings Limited, Alpha Brokers (Metals)-
Limited, Valerie Chitty Services Limited, Exco Channel Islands Limited, Astley & Pearce (CI) Limited, Exco Trustees Limited, Astley & Pearce

{Asia Pacific) Pte, Exco Moneybroking Hong Kong Limited, Astley & Pearce (Asian-Pacific) Limited, Exco Mauritius Limited.

73 Intercapital ple Report and Accounts 1899



Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

15 months ended 31st March 1999

Company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs -«
the Company and the Group and of the profit of loss of the Group for that period. In preparing those accounts, the directors are
required to;

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
-~ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained ir- the
accounts; and

- prepare the accounts on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate sc to do.

The directors confirm that suitable accounting policies have been used and applied consistently and reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates have been made in the preparation of the accounts for the period ended 31st March 1999. The directors also confirn that
applicable accounting standards have been followed.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and the Group and which enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

By order of the Board

Edward Pank

Secretary

London / / - .
16th June 1999
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Report of the Auditors

15 menths ended 31st March 1999

To the Members of Intercapital plc.
We have audited the accounts on pages 41 to 73 which have been prepared under the historical cost convention and the accounti:g
policies set out on pages 46 and 47.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual report, including, as described on page 74 the accounts. Our respunsi hlhtles
as independent auditors, are established by statute, the Auditing Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the London Stock Exchange 2nd our
profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the accounts, if the Company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information contained in the accounts and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any aparent
mis-statements or material inconsistencies with the accounts.

We review whether the statement on pages 29 to 32 reflects the Company’s compliance with those provisions of the Combined Core
specified for our review by the London Stock Exchange, and we repoert it if does not. We are not required to form an opinion on the:
effectiveness of the Company’s corporate governance procedures or its internal controls.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on
atest basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounis. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order ib provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounts are free from material mis-statement, whether caused by traud or
other irregularity or error. in forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the acccunts.

Opinion
in our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group at 31st March 1999 and of the Io.» ad
cash flows of the Group for the period then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

A LR LA NG j5
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
16th June 1999
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the offices of Ashurst Morris Crisp at
Broadwalk House, 5 Appeld Sireet, London EC2A 2HA at noon on 22nd July 1998 to consider and if thought fit pass the following
resolutions:

Ordinary Business
1. That the Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts of the Company for the period ended 31st March 1999 be received and adopted.

That a final dividend of cne penny per share in respect of the 15 months ended 31st March 1999 be declared.
That Mr M. A. Spencer be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr J. D. Nixon be elected a director of the Company.

That MrD. Gelber be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr P N. Buckley be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr C. Cooke be re-elected a director of the Company.

That Mr J. Q. Robson be elected a director of the Company,.

© @ N @ o s N

That Mr K. M. Taylor be re-elected a director of the Company.
10. That Mr H. Watanahe be elected a director of the Company.

Ordinary Business Requiring Special Notice

11. To consider, and if thought fit, pass the following resolution, special notice having been received of the intention to propose the
resolution as an ordinary resolution:
That PricewaterhouseCoopers be reappointed auditors of the Company (having previously been appointed by the Board tofilt the
casual vacancy arising by reason of the resignation of Coopers & Lybrand) to hold office until the conclusion of the next general imeeting
at which accounts are laid before the Company and that their remuneration be fixed by the directors.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, of which resolution 12 will be proposed as an ordinary resolution an-:
resolutions 13 and 14 will be proposed as special resolutions.

12. That in substitution for any other authority previously conferred on them, the directors be and they are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised for the purposes of section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 (“the Act”), to exercise all the powers of tiwe:
Company to allot relevant securities (within the meaning of section 80{2) of the Act) up to an aggregate number of 122,406,289
ordinary shares of 25p each. This authority shall expire on 21st October 2000 save that the Company may before such expiry maie
an offer or agreement which would or might require relevant securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allo:
relevant securities in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not expired.
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13. That, subject to the passing of resolution 12 above, the directors be and they are hereby empowered to allot equity securities (as
defined in section 94(2) of the Act) of the Company pursuant to the authority conferred by resolution 12 above as if section 88(3} of
the Act did not apply to such allotment, provided that this power shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities:

{a) in connection with a rights or other pre-emptive issue in favour of ordinary shareholders where the equity securities offered are
proportionate (as nearly as practicable) to the respective number of ordinary shares held by such helders, but subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deern necessary or desirable to deal with fractional entitlernents, record
dates, or legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of, any regulatory authority in any territory or otherwise
however; and/or

(b} pursuant to the acceptance of any scrip dividend offer; and/or

{c) otherwise than pursuant to {a) or (b} above for cash up to an aggregate number of 18,379,685 ordinary shares of 25p each
representing approximately 5% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at the date hereof,

This power shall expire on 21st October 2000, save that the Company may before such expiry make an offer or agreement which
would or might require equity securities to be allotted after such expiry and the directors may allot equity securities in pursuance :¢
such offer or agreement as if the power conferred hereby had not expired.

14. That: .

{a) the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditicnally authorised, pursuant to section 166 of the Companies Act 1985 tc
make market purchases {as defined in section 163 of the Companies Act 1985) of its own shares on such terms and in such a
manner as the directors of the Company shall determine:

(b) the general authority conferred by this resolution shall;

(i) be limited to a maximum of 36,759,371 ordinary shares of 25p each {representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at 8th June 1999);

(i) not permit payment of a price per ordinary share, exclusive of expenses, of less than 25p or more than 105% of the average cf
the middle market quotations for the ordinary shares of the Company as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official
List for the five business days in respect of which that list is published immediately preceding the day on which the shares are
contracted to be purchased;

{iii) expire on the conclusion of the next Annual General Mesting after the passing of this resclution or 21st October 2000 (whichewver
is the earlier) save that the Company may before the expiry of the authority hereby conferred contract to purchase its own '
ordinary shares on terms which require or might require the purchase of such ordinary shares to be executed wholly or parth
after such expiry.

By order of the Board
E.C. Pank
Secretary — P v
{

Registered Office:
16 Finsbury Circus
London EC2M 7UR
16th June 1999
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

1. Amember of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting convened by the above Notice is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend and, on a poll, vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

2. Aform of proxy is enclosed for use in connection with the above Meeting. To be valid the instrument appointing a proxy and the
Power of Attorney {if any) under which it is signed must be deposited at the office of the Company's Registrars, Lloyds TSB
Registrars, The Causeway, Worthing, West Sussex BN99 6DA, not later than noon on Tuesday 20th July 1999. Completion of the
form of proxy will not affect the right of a sharsholder to attend and vote at the above Meeting should he or she afterwards so deside.

3. The Company pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 1995, specifies that only those shareholders
registered in the register of members of the Cormpany as at 6pm on Tuesday 20th July 1999 shall be entitled to attend or vote at the
aforesaid general Meeting in respect of the number of shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the
relevant register of secuwities after this time shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any persen to attend or vote at the
Meeting.

4. The following documents will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during normal business hours ¢
any weekday (Saturday and public holidays excluded) from the date of this notice until the date of the Annual General Meeting aid
at the venue of the Meeting from 11.45am on Thursday 22nd July 1998 until the conclusion of the Meeting:

{i) copies of the service contracts of the directors; and
(i) the register of directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company.

5. Note to resolution 11: Following the merger of Coopers & Lybrand and PriceWaterhouse on 1st July 1988, Coopers & Lybrand resigned
as auditors in favour of the new firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and the directors appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers to fill the casual
vacancy created by the resignation.

6. Information about the directors to be elected and re-elected as directors of the Company can be found on page 76 of the annug!
report and accounts.
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Form of Proxy

For use at the Annual General Meeting on 22nd July 1999,

|/We (Please complete in block capitals)

of (Address)

being (a) holder(s) of Shares in the above Company
hereby appaint Mr M. A. Spencer or failing him the Chairman of the Meeting/ (see none 5 below)

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 22nd July 1999 and at any adjournment thareof.

Please indicate with an ‘X’ how you wish your vote to be cast in respect of the resolutions. In the absence of any specific directions, the proxy will vote
or abstain at his discretion.

Ordinary Business

-
(2]
=4

Against

'y

To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and the Audited Accounts for the 15-month period ended 31st March 1999,
To declare a final dividend of one penny per ordinary share.

That Mr M. A. Spencer be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr J. D. Nixon be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr D. Gelber be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr P. N. Buckley be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr C. Cooke be re-elected a director of the Company.

That Mr J. Q. Robson be elected a director of the Company.

That Mr K. M. Taylor be re-elected a director of the Company.
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0. That Mr H. Watanabe be elected a director of the Company.

-n
[=]
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Ordinary Business Requiring Special Notice Against

C

O

11. To reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company and to authorise the directors to determine
their remuneration.

Special Business For Against

0
O
O

12, To authorise the directors to allot shares.

13. Special resolution to disapply pre-emption rights.

gp.

14. Special resolution to permit the Company to purchase its own shares.

Signed Dated 1999
Notes:
1. Amember who is entitled to attend and vete at the above Meeting is entitied to appaint a proxy or proxies to attend and, on a poll, te vate on his behalf, A proxy need not be a member of

the Company.

2. Only one of joint holders needs to sign. In the case of joint holders the vote of the senicr who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, will be accepted to the exclusion of thz sotes of any
other joint holder(s), and for this purpose seniority will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register of Members.

3. Comorations should affix their commen seal of sign by a duly authorised officer or atterney.

4. To be valid, this Form of Proxy and the Power of Attorney or other autherity (if any) under which it is signed or a duly certified copy of such power or authority must reach Lioyds T3B Fiegis'rars,

the Registrars of the Company, at the address overleaf not later than noon on Tuesday 20th July 1999,

If you wish to appoint seme person of your own choosing as your proxy you should complate in block capitals his or her full name in the space provided and delete the words “Mr F2. A, Spencer

or failing him the Chairman of the meeting”. Such proxy need not be a member of the Company. Any alterations must be initialled.

Completion of this form will not preclude you from attending and voting at the Meeting in person if you so wish,

You should print your name and address in the space provided.

You should sign in the space provided.

Unless instructed otherwise, the proxy may also vote or abstain from voting as he or she thinks fit on any other business which may properly come before the Meeting (including ar endrents

to resolutions).

-,

© o N



Fold

Ped

BUSINESS REPLY SERVICE
LICENCE NO. BR 3006

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex BN99 6DB

Tuckin




